




Notice is hereby given that the Thirty-ninth Annual General Meeting of Triton Valves Limited will be held at 
The Gateway Hotel, Residency Road, Bangalore-560025 on Wednesday, the 19th of August 2015 at 04.00 P.M
to transact the following business:

To ratify the appointment of the Auditors and to fix their remuneration and in that behalf to consider and 
if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as Ordinary Resolution.

Ordinary Business

“Resolved that pursuant to Section 139(1) and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act 
2013, Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and any other law or guidelines applicable,
if any for the time being in force, the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to
reappoint M/s Brahmayya & Co., Chartered Accountants to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual 
General Meeting to the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and to fix their remuneration 
subject to ratification in Annual General Meeting”.

Special Business

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2015, Statement of Profit and
Loss for the year ended on that date, the reports of the Board of Directors & Auditors and Compliance 
Certificate thereon.

1. 

To declare a dividend. 2.

3.

To appoint Director in place of Mrs. Anuradha M. Gokarn (DIN:00185509), who retires from office by 
rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. 

4.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following Resolution as a Special 
Resolution.

5.

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 197 & 203 and other applicable and related 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”), read with Schedule V of 
the Act and Chapter XIII of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014, as may be applicable (including any Statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time 
being in force) and subject to the approval of the Central Government (Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
New Delhi), consent of the Shareholders of the Company be and is hereby accorded for payment of 
minimum remuneration of Rs.79,86,600/- (Rupees Seventy nine lakhs eighty six thousand and six hundred)
to Mr. Aditya M Gokarn, Managing Director of the Company, by way of salary, perquisites and allowances 
for the period from 1st February 2016 to 31st January 2017, as  may be agreed mutually between the 
Board of Directors and  Mr. Aditya M Gokarn, Managing Director. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of the Company not having any profit or its profits are inadequate 
in any Financial year during the tenure of his appointment, the above remuneration by way of salary, 
allowances and perquisites shall be paid to Mr. Aditya M. Gokarn as a minimum remuneration, but however
subject to the approval of the Central Government and/ or limits laid down under Section II of Part II of 
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 including any Statutory modification or re-enactment thereof as 
may be for the time being be in force.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to vary, 
alter or modify the terms and conditions including remuneration as may be directed by the Central 
Government and as may be agreed to by the Board of Directors and Mr.Aditya M. Gokarn.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above Resolution, the Board of Directors 
be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as they may in their absolute 
discretion deem necessary, expedient, usual and proper in the best interest of the Company.”

1

                                  
Bangalore
22nd May 2015

                                                                 
Registered Office:
Sunrise Chambers
22, Ulsoor Road, 
Bangalore - 560 042

By order of the Board of Directors

ADITYA M. GOKARN
Managing Director
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The Explanatory Statement in regard to Special Business as required pursuant to Section 102 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 is annexed. 

1.

In terms of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Member entitled to attend and vote at a General 

Meeting is entitled to appoint another person (whether a Member or not) as his/her proxy to attend and 

vote instead of himself/herself but a proxy so appointed shall not have any right to speak at the meeting. 

A person appointed as proxy shall be entitled to vote only upon a poll. Further, as per the provisions of 

Section 105 read with Rule 19(2) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, a 

person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more 

than ten percent of the total Share Capital of the Company carrying voting rights provided that a Member

holding more than ten percent, of the total Share Capital of the Bank carrying voting rights may appoint 

a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other person or Shareholder. A 

form of proxy is enclosed to this notice. No instrument of proxy shall be valid unless: 

2.

it is signed by the Member or by his/her attorney duly authorised in writing or, in the case of joint 

holders, it is signed by the Member first named in the register of Members or his/her attorney duly 

authorised in writing or, in the case of Body Corporate, it is executed under its common seal, if any, 

or signed by its attorney duly authorised in writing; provided that an instrument of proxy shall be 

sufficiently signed by any Member, who for any reason is unable to write his/her name, if his/her 

thumb impression is affixed thereto, and attested by a Judge, Magistrate, Registrar or Sub-Registrar 

of assurances or other Government Gazetted officers.

a.

it is duly stamped and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours 

before the time fixed for the meeting, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if 

any), under which it is signed or a copy of that power of attorney certified by a Notary Public or a 

Magistrate unless such a power of attorney or the other authority is previously deposited and 

registered with the Company.

b.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 10th August 

2015 to 19th August 2015 (both days inclusive). 

3.

Register of Members shall be available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during office 

hours on all working days between 11.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m.

4.

The dividend recommended by the Board, if approved at the Annual General Meeting, will be paid on or 

before 18th September 2015 to the Shareholders whose names appear in the Register of Members of the 

Company as on 19th August 2015. In respect of Shares held in dematerialized form, the dividend will be 

paid on the basis of particulars of beneficial ownership furnished by the Depositories as on that date. 

5.

Members who wish to claim dividends, which have remained unclaimed, are requested to either 

correspond with the Corporate Secretarial Department at the Company's Registered Office or the 

Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Canbank Computer Services Ltd., 218, J.P.Royale, 

1st Floor, 2nd Main, Near 14th Cross, Sampige Road, Malleswaram, Banglore-560 003. Members are 

requested to note that dividends remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the 

date they became due for payment will, as per Section 125(5) read with Section 469 of the Companies 

Act, 2013, be transferred to the Investors Education and Protection Fund. The Company has transferred 

the unclaimed dividend up to the Financial Year ended 31st March 2007 to the Fund.

6.

After completion of seven years as aforesaid, no claims shall stand against the Investors Education and 

Protection Fund or the Company for the amounts of dividend so transferred nor shall any payment be 

made in respect of such claims.

NOTES



Details of Director seeking Appointment at the Annual General Meeting

Name

Date of Birth

Date of Appointment

Qualifications

Expertise in specific functional area

Directorships held in other Public Companies

Memberships/Chairmanships of Committees of other 
Public Companies (includes only Audit and 
Shareholder Grievance Committees)

No. of shares held in the Company  

Mrs. Anuradha M. Gokarn

December 25, 1942

July 12, 1986

M.Phil.

Management of the Company

Nil.

Nil.
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7.

280041

In terms of the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (the Rules), the Items of Business given in 

AGM Notice may be transacted through electronic voting system and the Company is providing e-voting 

facility to the Members who are the Members as on 12th August 2015 (End of Day) being the “Record 

Date” fixed for the purpose, to exercise their right to vote at the thirtynighth AGM by electronic means 

through the e-voting platform provided by National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL).

8.

Necessary certificate as required under The Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules 2014 has been obtained.9.

                                  
Bangalore

22nd May 2015
                                                                 

Registered Office:

Sunrise Chambers

22, Ulsoor Road, 

Bangalore - 560 042

By order of the Board of Directors

ADITYA M. GOKARN

Managing Director



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Items 5 

Mr. Aditya M. Gokarn, Managing Director, was appointed/re-appointed by the Shareholders of the 
Company at a remuneration and other perquisites & allowances on the following terms & conditions:

4

Considering the role and the important contributions made by the Managing Director for the growth of 

the Company and also taking into account similar sized industries in India, on the recommendation of the 

Compensation and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors have approved payment of maximum 

remuneration as stated in the Resolution.

Statement containing required information as per Category (iv) of Part II of Section II of 
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 for Item No. 5 

GENERAL INFORMATION:1.

i. Nature of Industry –  Auto Ancillary

ii. Date of commencement of commercial production – 10th September 1975.

iii. Financial performance based on given indicators – 

iv. Foreign investments or collaborators, if any:  NIL 

Particulars

Sales (Gross)

Profit before Tax

Profit after Tax

Networth

Dividend on Equity %

14446

342

222

4601

70%

2012-13 2013-14

16060

391

291

4800

80%

2014-15

16950

978

741

5156

120%

Rupees In Lakhs

 As per Company Policy

50,40,000/-

1,51,200/-

14,52,000/-

4,10,000/-

2,52,000/-

–

Present (Rs.) Revised (Rs.)

As per Statutory Rules

Upto Rs.60,000/- per annum

Provision of car for Company use.

Provided by the Company for 
official use.

Particulars

Salary

Perquisites

Housing

Medical Allowance

Leave/Holiday Travel Expenses

Bonus

Leave Encashment

Provident Fund & Gratuity

Club Fees

Conveyance Facilities

Telephone and other Communication 
Facilities

Commission 5 % of net profits subject to 
availability of profits

55,20,000/-

1,65,600/-

15,00,000/-

4,55,000/-

2,76,000/-

–

As per Company Policy

As per Statutory Rules

Upto Rs.60,000/- per annum

Provision of car for Company use.

Provided by the Company for 
official use.

5 % of net profits subject to 
availability of profits



INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEES: 2.

i. Background details – Mr. Aditya M Gokarn hold a bachelors’ degree in Mechanical Engineering from 
Visveswaraiah Technological University’s RV College of Engineering Bangalore. He joined the 
Company as Manager Business Development in 2003 and was subsequently inducted on the Board of 
the Company in 2005 in the capacity of Executive Director. He has varied experience in business 
development, project execution and new product development. He was instrumental in executing 
the capacity expansion and technology upgradation programmes of the Company during the last ten 
years 

ii. Past Remuneration – As mentioned above.

iii. Job Profile and Suitability – As Managing Director he is responsible for planning and executing the 
growth and development of the Company as a whole.  He has had considerable success in steering the 
Company in challenging times.  During his tenure as Executive Director and as Managing Director from 
2013, the Company consolidated its position in the market and successfully made the transition from 
Tier 2 to Tier 1 in the automotive supply chain. Under his leadership, the Company has grown 
significantly in all aspects.

iv. Remuneration proposed – As mentioned in the Resolution. 

v. Comparative remuneration Profile with respect to Industry, size of the Company, profile of the 
position and person - The proposed remuneration is much below the prevailing remuneration in the 
industry of similar size for similarly placed persons. 

vi. Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company, or relationship with the managerial 
personal, if any – Nil.

OTHER INFORMATION: 3.

Your Directors recommend passing of the Resolution at item no. 5 as Special Resolution. 

None of the Directors are interested in the said Resolution except Mr. Aditya M. Gokarn and 
Mrs. Anuradha M. Gokarn.

                                  

Bangalore
22nd May 2015                                                                 

By order of the Board of Directors

ADITYA M. GOKARN
Managing Director

i. Mr. Aditya M Gokarn was inducted as Managing Director on 31st January 2013. The Company’s 
turnover increased from Rs. 144 Crore in 2013 to Rs. 170 Crores in 2015.  Profit Before Tax increased 
from Rs.3.42 Crores in 2013 to Rs. 9.78 Crores in 2015.  Production capacities have been substantially 
increased to meet the increasing market demand.  

ii. The Company has established its in-house R&D Center which has received approval from the 
Government of India. 
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Voting through electronic means

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Clause 35B of the Listing Agreement, the Company is 

pleased to provide Members facility to exercise their right to vote on Resolutions proposed to be 

considered at the Annual General Meeting by electronic means and the business may be transacted 

through e-Voting Services. The facility of casting the votes by the Members using an electronic voting 

system from a place other than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) will be provided by National 

Securities Depository Limited (NSDL).

I

The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the venue of the Annual General 

Meeting and the Members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting 

shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting through ballot paper.

II

The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but 
shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

III

The remote e-voting period commences on 16th August 2015 (9:00 am) and ends on 18th August 2015 
(5:00 pm). During this period Members of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in 
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 12th August 2015, may cast their vote by remote 
e-voting. Remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on 
a Resolution is cast by the Member, the Member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

IV

The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:V

A. In case a Member receives an email from NSDL [for Members whose email IDs are registered with the 
Company/Depository Participants(s)] :

(I) Open email and open PDF file viz; “remote e-voting.pdf” with your Client ID or Folio No. as 
password. The said PDF file contains your user ID and password/PIN for remote e-voting. Please 
note that the password is an initial password.

(II) Launch internet browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/  

(III) Click on Shareholder - Login

(IV) Put user ID and password as initial password/PIN noted in step (i) above. Click Login.

(V) Password change menu appears. Change the password/PIN with new password of your choice 
with minimum 8 digits/characters or combination thereof. Note new password. It is strongly 
recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep 
your password confidential.

(VI) Home page of remote e-voting opens. Click on remote e-voting: Active Voting Cycles.

(VII) Select “EVEN” of “Triton Valves Limited”.

(VIII) Now you are ready for remote e-voting as Cast Vote page opens.

(IX) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 
prompted.

(X) Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

(XI) Once you have voted on the Resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
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B. In case a Member receives physical copy of the Notice of AGM [for Members whose email IDs are not 
registered with the Company/Depository Participants(s) or requesting physical copy] :

(I) Initial password is provided as below/at the evoting instruction letter for the  AGM: 

EVEN (Remote e-voting Event Number)         USER ID     PASSWORD/PIN

(ii) Please follow all steps from Sl. No. (ii) to Sl. No. (xii) above, to cast vote.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Members and remote 
e-voting user manual for Members available at the downloads section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call 
toll free no.: 1800-222-990.

VI

(XII) Institutional Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. 
together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are 
authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer through e-mail to  skedarnathassociates@gmail.com with 
a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in

If you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use your existing user ID and 

password/PIN for casting your vote.

VII

You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio which may 

be used for sending future communication(s).

VIII

The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up Equity Share Capital of 

the Company as on the cut-off date of 12th August 2015.

IX

Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become Member of the Company after dispatch of 

the notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 12th August 2015, may obtain the login ID and 

password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or ravi@ccsl.co.in or canbankrta@ccsl.co.in 

X

However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use your existing user 

ID and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using 

“Forgot User Details/Password” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at the 

following toll free no.: 1800-222-990.

A Member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to vote through remote e-voting 

but shall not be allowed to vote again at the AGM.  

XI

A person, whose name is recorded in the register of Members or in the register of beneficial owners 

maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote 

e-voting as well as voting at the AGM through ballot paper.

XII

Mr.K.S.Sudhindra, Company Secretary (Membership No. 7909) of S.Kedarnath & Associates has been 

appointed as the Scrutinizer for providing facility to the Members of the Company to scrutinize the 

voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 

XIII
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The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the Resolutions on which voting is to be 

held, allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of “Ballot Paper” for all those Members 

who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

XIV

The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the General Meeting, will first count the votes 

cast at the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of  

at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than three 

days of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer's report of the total votes cast in favour 

or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the 

same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

XV

The Results declared alongwith the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the 

Company www.tritonvalves.com and on the website of NSDL immediately after the declaration of result 

by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be immediately 

forwarded to the BSE Limited, Mumbai.

XVI



ATTENDANCE SLIP 

 
Members attending the Meeting in person or by 
hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall. 

Proxy are requested to complete the attendance slip and 

 
I hereby record my presence at the 39th 
at The Gateway Hotel, Residency Road, Bangalore-560025 on Wednesday the 19th of August 2015 at 04.00 P.M

 Annual General Meeting of Members of the Company to be held 

. 
 
 
Full name of the Member (in block letters)  : 
 
           
                                                                                                                                         Signature 
 

 
Folio No • DP ID No.* ................................ Client ID No.* 
...................... 

 
No. Of Shares: 
 
*Applicable for Member holding shares in electronic form 
 

 
Full name of the proxy (in block letters) 
 
 

 
                                                                                                                                      Signature 

TRITON VALVES LIMITED 
Regd. Office: Sunrise Chambers, 22, Ulsoor Road, BANGALORE -560042. 





 
 

 

TRITON VALVES LIMITED  
Regd. Office: Sunrise Chambers, 22, Ulsoor Road, BANGALORE -560042. 

PROXY FORM - MGT-11

 

 

 
 

Address:_______________________________________________________________ 

E-mail Id:  ______________________________________________________________ 

Signature: ___________________________________________ , or failing him / her   

(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)  

Name of the Company: TRITON VALVES LIMITED (CIN No. L25119KA1975PLC002867)  
Registered Office : Sunrise Chambers, 22, Ulsoor Road, BANGALORE - 560042.

.  

Name of the Member (s) : 
_________________________________________________________________________  

 

Registered address:  
_________________________________________________________________________

 
E-mail Id: 
.................................. 

DP ID No.* 
................................  

Client ID No.* 
......................... 

 
I / We. being the Member(s) of_______ Equity Shares of Triton Valves Limited hereby 
appoint 

 
  1.

 
Name  
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
 Address : 

______________________________________________________________________ 

 
 E-mail Id : 

______________________________________________________________________ 

 
 Signature :  _________________________________________ . or failing him / her 

 
 

2.

 

Name:  _______________________________________________________________ 

 
 

Address:______________________________________________________________ 

 
 

E-mail Id:  _____________________________________________________________ 

 
 

Signature: __________________________________________ , or failing him / her  

 
 

3.

 

Name: ________________________________________________________________ 

 



as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf 
at the 39th  Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on 19th August, 2015
at 04.00 p.m. at 'The Gateway Hotel', Residency Road, Bangalore - 560 025 and at 
any adjournment thereof, in respect of such Resolutions set out in the Notice 
convening the meeting as are indicated below: 

 

 

 

Particulars For Against 
Resolution No 1: 
Adoption of Annual 
Accounts 

 

Resolution No.2 
Declaration of Final 
Dividend 

 

Resolution No. 3 To Re 
appoint Mrs. Anuradha 
M. Gokarn 

 

Resolution No 4. To re-
appoint Statutory 
Auditors 

 

Resolution No 5. 
Approval for payment 
of remuneration of MD. 

 

 
 Signed 

this day of ___  2015       Signature of Shareholder 
Affix Re. 1
Revenue 
Stamp

 
Signature of Proxy Holder (s) 

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed 

and deposited at the Registered office of the Company, not less than 48 

hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
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04.00 p.m on Wednesday the 19th of August 2015

10th August 2015 to 19th August 2015

On or before 1 th September 20158

The Gateway Hotel, Residency Road, 
Bangalore-560025

3

Director’s Report

4

5

6

11

30

33

42

45

49

50

51

53

Secretarial Audit Report

Statement of Profit and Loss

The Equity shares of Rs.10/- each listed at
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Net Sales

Profit Before Tax

Profit After Tax

Dividend

Earnings per Share

Gross Fixed Assets

Net Worth

Particulars

16059.68

390.72

290.71

80%

29.36

10351.08

4799.85

4910.12

372.50

245.43

125%

76.69

1796.44

2753.44

6438.47

293.53

199.72

100%

62.41

2372.06

2915.72

7469.12

383.45

241.24

125%

75.39

3664.40

3054.62

7836.92

441.90

283.82

150%

88.69

4412.69

3287.97

9132.62

709.19

480.98

200%

150.30

4772.14

3694.31

12470.05

889.83

603.72

100%

91.43

6127.05

4332.98

14390.69

308.76

207.28

70%

20.94

8727.59

4459.72

14446.93

341.53

222.01

70%

22.42

10235.43

4601.19

2013-142005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2011-12 2012-132010-11

TEN YEARS AT A GLANCE

16950.19

978.47

740.72

120%

74.82

10501.12

5156.02

2014-15
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Thirty-Ninth Annual Report together with the Audited Accounts 
for the year ended 31st March 2015.
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During the year under review, the Company achieved the following financial results:

Financial Results1.

Total Income

Profit Before Tax

Provision for Taxation

Profit After Tax

Add: (a) Balance Brought Forward

Profit available for appropriation

Appropriations

Proposed Dividend on equity shares

Tax on Dividend

General Reserve

Balance Carried Forward

31.03.2015
(Rs. Lakhs)

31.03.2014
(Rs. Lakhs)

16983.190

978.47

237.75

740.71

351.84

1092.55

118.80

25.47

300.00

648.28

1092.55

16067.43

390.72

100.01

290.71

453.18

743.89

79.20

12.85

300.00

351.84

743.89

Dividend2.

Your Directors are pleased to recommend a dividend of Rs.12/- per Equity Share (120 %) for the Financial 
Year ended 31st March 2015.

Reserves3.

The Reserves of the Company increased by 8% to Rs.50.57 crore against Rs. 47.01 crore in the previous 
year. In view of higher available disposable profit, as amount of Rs. 3 crore has been transferred to 
General Reserve during the current year.

Business Operations4.

The Company's sales turnover net of excise duty and discount increased by 6% to Rs. 169.50 crore against 
Rs. 160.60 crore in the previous year. Operating Profit Margin improved on account of the effective cost 
control measures implemented during the year.  Profit Before Tax increased to Rs. 978 lakhs from the 
previous year's level of Rs.391 lakhs representing an increase of 150 %. Profit After Tax increased by 
155 % over the previous year to Rs. 740.72 lakhs.

Prospects for the Financial Year 2015-165.

Your Company's prospects are directly linked to that of the automobile and tyre industries. Both these 
industries are expected to grow during the year ahead. Analysts and industry watchers expect the 
automobile industry to grow by 5-7% and the tyre industry by 5% during the year ahead. Economic 
recovery and fuel price deflation are expected to fuel passenger and commercial vehicles' demand. 
Competitive intensity is expected to gather momentum across all segments, especially in passenger 
vehicles and commercial vehicles, with several launches in the pipeline from all the major market 
players. The tyre industry continues to invest in additional capacities in all the segments. Hence your 
Company has a positive outlook for the year ahead.



7

Change in the nature of business6.

There has not been any change in the nature of business.

Board meetings7.

The Board of Directors met 4 (Four) times during the financial year i.e., on 30th May 2014, 14th August 

2014, 18th October 2014 and 30th January 2015.

Board of Directors8.

Mrs.Anuradha M.Gokarn retires by rotation at the Annual General Meeting and being eligible has offered 

herself for re-appointment.

Directors / Key managerial personnel 9.

During the year, there was no change in the Board of Directors of the Company. Mr. V. Sridhar was 

appointed as Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company w.e.f March 25, 2015.

Material changes and commitments 10.

There are no changes or commitments made, affecting the financial position of the Company during the 

financial year ended 31.03.2015 and also till the date of this report. The depreciation on the assets of 

the Company has been re-cast in line with Companies Act 2013 and to that extent affecting results of 

the Company.

Corporate Governance11.

As per Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange, a separate report on Corporate 

Governance and Management Discussion and Analysis together with a certificate from the Company's 

Auditors confirming the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is attached to this report.

Auditors12.

M/s Brahmayya & Co., Bangalore, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company by the 

shareholders at the last AGM held on August 18, 2014. The Members are requested to ratify the 

appointment of its Statutory Auditors from the conclusion of this Thirty-ninth Annual General Meeting 

upto the conclusion of the Fortieth Annual General Meeting. They have confirmed their eligibility under 

Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder for reappointment as Auditors 

of the Company.

Cost Audit13.

Cost Audit under Section 148 of the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to your Company for the 

Financial Year 2014-15.

Employee Relations14.

Employee relations continued to be cordial during the year.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Exports and Foreign Earnings & Outgo15.

Information required to be furnished pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act 2013 is set out 

in the Annexure 1 to this report.



Listing with Stock Exchanges16.

As per the requirement of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges, the Company 

hereby declares that the listing of its Shares continued throughout the year with the Stock Exchange 

Mumbai, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai-400001 and that the Company has paid the 

listing fees up to date.

8

Directors' responsibility statement 17.

As per Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors makes the following statement:

(a) That in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been 
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

(b) That the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the Profit or Loss of the 
Company for that period.

(c )That the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) That the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

(e) That the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that 
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

Financial performance / financial position of subsidiaries / associate companies / joint ventures 18.

There are no Subsidiary companies/Associate companies/Joint ventures associated with the Company.

Extract of Annual Return 19.

The Extracts of Annual Return as per Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is enclosed herewith and forms part of the 
report as Annexure – 2. 

Qualification of Secretarial Auditors :20.

The Company is yet to appoint Company Secretary within the purview of Section 203 of the Companies 
Act 2013.

Reply to Secretarial auditors comments:21.

The Company is the process of appointing Company Secretary. 

Annual Evaluation of performace of the Board, its Committees and Individual Directors:22.

The Company has laid down criteria and policy on evaluation of the performance of the Board, its 
Committees and Independent Directors as per the Companies Act, 2013 and same is available in the 
Company's website. www.tritonvalves.com

Particulars Of Employees23.

(f) That the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

The table containing the names and other particulars of employees in accordance with the provisions of
Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is appended as Annexure 3 to the Directors report.



Disclosure under the sexual harassment of women at workplace (prevention, prohibition and 
redressal) Act, 2013 

24.

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every individual 
working in Triton Valves Limited's premises through various interventions and practices. The Company 
always endeavours to create and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment 
including sexual harassment.
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Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace had already been implemented as per the 
directives of Supreme Court. Further, the same policy had been amended recently in line with the recent 
amendments. The policy aims at prevention of harassment of employees and lays down the guidelines 
for identification, reporting and prevention of undesired behaviour. The Committee had been formed 
including the outside member to oversee the effective implementation.

No complaints were received during the year ended 31 March 2015.

Deposits25.

Your Company has not accepted any deposits from the public in terms of Section 73 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 during the year under review.

Significant & material orders passed by the Regulators 26.

The Company has not received any significant/material orders from the Statutory Regulatory bodies/
Courts/Tribunals which effect the operations/status of the Company.

Details of adequacy of internal financial controls 27.

The Company is well equipped with adequate internal financial controls. The Company has a continuous
monitoring mechanism which enables the organisation to maintain the same standard of the control 
systems and in managing any default on timely basis because of strong reporting mechanisms followed 
by the Company.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments 28.

The company has not given any loans or provided any guarantees or made any investments during the 
financial year under review.

Risk Management Policy 29.

The Risk Management Committee has been constituted defining role and responsibilities of the Committee 
and same is available in Company's web site. www.tritonvalves.com

Corporate Social Responsibility: 30.

The Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and has formulated a policy 
of CSR and same is available in Company's website www.tritonvalves.com. However the Company does 
not fall under the threshold limit as prescribed under Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013. 

Related Party Transactions31.

The Company has formulated a policy on related party transactions and same is available in the Company's 
web site. www.tritonvalves.com. The Particulars of contracts/ arrangement made with related parties as 
required under clause (h) of Sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule (8)(2) of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 in Form AOC-2 is attached herewith as Annexure 4.
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Composition of Audit Committee:33.

The Company has constituted an Audit Committee as required the Companies Act 2013 and listing 

agreement. Same is available in the Corporate Governance report forming part of Annual Report.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee:34.

Policy had been laid down by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee for remuneration of 

Directors, KMP & other employees and the criteria formulated by the Committee for determining 

qualifications, positive attributes of Independent Directors is appended as Annexure 5 to this Report and 

the same is available in the Company's website: www.tritonvalves.com

Vigil Mechanism/whistle blower policy:35.

The Company has formulated a policy on vigil mechanism and whistle blower as required under the 

Companies Act 2013 and listing agreement and same displayed in the Company's website; 

www.tritonvalves.com.

Recognition of R & D Centre 36.

The Company had applied for recognition for its in-house R&D Center during the previous year with the 

Department of Scientific and Industrial Research (DSIR). We wish to inform our Shareholders that the 

recognition had been obtained with effect from 28th January 2014 and is valid up to 31st March 2016. 

Appreciation37.

Your Directors thank the customers and vendors for their continued support to your Company's growth.  

Your Directors place on record their appreciation of the support given by HDFC Bank, Standard 

Chartered Bank, Citibank, Kotak Mahindra Bank and ICICI Bank for meeting the long term and working 

capital needs of the Company.

Your Directors are grateful to the State Government for their continued support to the Company's 

activities. 

Your Directors are thankful to the esteemed Shareholders for their support and encouragement. They 

also wish to place on record their appreciation of the contribution made by employees at all levels.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Bangalore

22nd May 2015

S.K.Welling

CHAIRMAN

Declaration from Independent Directors 32.

The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Director of the Company 
under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that the Independent Directors of the Company meet 
with the criteria of their Independence laid down in Section 149(6). 



ANNEXURE 1
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(Information pursuant to Clause (m) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act read with Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Power factor has been improved to 0.99 by installing capacitors in the Main Voltage Panel

CONSERVATION OF ENERGYA.

a.

Power consumption has been reduced by process improvement in molding process.b.

High energy consumption equipment is operated during off-peak hours to take advantage of the lower 
power tariffs

c.

Efficiency of chiller units has been increased by innovative design of cooling water circuitsd.

Action initiated to introduce LED lights in place of metal halide lampse.

Solar heating is being used in place of electrical heating in some areasf.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTIONB.

Research and Development (R&D)a.

The specific areas in which R&D was carried out by the Company are:

i. Development of new products for the domestic and export markets. 

ii. Development of new rubber compounds and formulations.

iii. Development of new tools, moulds, jigs and fixtures. 

iv. Development of new manufacturing processes and techniques

v. Development of new equipment and modification of existing machinery.

Benefits derived as a result of the R&Db.

The R&D activities are primarily carried out in our in-house, independent R&D Center located within 
our Mysore facility. The R&D center is well equipped to cater to our needs. New products are 
continuously designed, developed and tested for compliance to internationally recognized standards 
as well as customer specific requirements. The development of new tools, moulds and fixtures has 
resulted in increased productivity, waste reduction and improvement in quality. Several new and 
improved manufacturing processes have been developed which have resulted in reduction in scrap 
generation and improvements in product performance. Development of new equipment has resulted 
in savings in capital expenditure and increased levels of shop-floor automation.

Future Plan of Actionc.

It is planned to develop new products to meet the changing needs of customers.  It is also proposed 
to focus on process improvements for cost reduction and quality improvement. Another area of work 
which the Company has identified is to reduce the adverse impact of manufacturing on the 
environment. It is proposed to take up projects which will substitute existing processes with more 
environmental friendly ones.

lTo develop substitutes for imported tools, spares and raw materials

lTo develop new products for domestic and export markets in applications other than tyre valves 
and valves cores. 

lPlanned to develop TPMS valves for export.

lTo develop high performance products to suit high temperature and high pressure applications

lTo substitute hazardous materials used in manufacturing with eco-friendly ones.

ANNEXURE TO DIRECTOR’S REPORT
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lTo create more sophisticated R&D infrastructure with complete facility for raw material testing, 
rubber testing and product testing.

lTo create additional facility in R&D to manufacture prototypes and small batch development 
activities.

Expenditure on Research & Development d.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgoc.

Foreign exchange earned through exports 

Foreign exchange used 

Rs. 1788.78 lakh

Equivalent in 
Rupees

Rs. 8336.62 lakh

R&D Expenses

a. Capital

b. Recurring

Total

Total R&D expenditure as a percentage 
of turnover

2013-14
(Rs. in lakh)

19.47

108.24

0.80%

127.71123.08

2014-15
(Rs. in lakh)

11.70

111.38

0.73%

Bangalore
22nd May 2015

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S.K.Welling

CHAIRMAN
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FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2015
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a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: Suvardhan, Managing 
Director and Non-Executive Director are Interested Partners in the Firm. 

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Purchase of Goods

c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: 3 Years

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, 
if any: The Company has entered into purchase of goods, the Board has approved for 
a maximum of Rs.200 lakhs per year.  

e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 29-05-2013

f) Amount paid as advances, if any : Nil

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

Bangalore
22nd May 2015

S.K.Welling
Chairman

Nomination & Remuneration Policy

1.Introduction

In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement, entered into by the 
Company with Stock Exchanges, as amended from time to time, this policy on nomination and 
remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), Senior Management and other employees of 
the Company has been formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company and 
approved by the Board of Directors vide its Resolution dated May 30, 2014. This policy shall act as a 
guideline for determining, inter-alia, qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director, 
matters relating to the remuneration, appointment, removal and evaluation of performance of the 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and other employees.

Objective of the Policy

The policy is framed with the objective(s):

1. That the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 
motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully

2. That the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 
benchmarks

3. That the remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), and other employees of the 
Company involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term 
performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals

4. To lay down criteria and terms and conditions with regard to identifying persons who are qualified to 
become Directors (Executive and Non-executive) and persons who may be appointed in Senior 
Management, Key Managerial positions and to determine their remuneration
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5. To determine remuneration based on the Company's size and financial position and trends and 
practices on remuneration prevailing in peer companies, in the industry

6. To carry out evaluation of the performance of Directors, as well as Key Managerial and Senior 
Management Personnel and to provide for reward(s) linked directly to their effort, performance, 
dedication and achievement relating to the Company's operations; and

7. To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial 
persons and create competitive advantage

8. To lay down criteria for appointment, removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management Personnel and evaluation of their performance

In the context of the aforesaid criteria the following policy has been formulated by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and adopted by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on March 25 2015.

Effective Date: This policy shall be effective from Financial Year 2014-15

Definitions

In this Policy unless the context otherwise requires:

‘Act’ means Companies Act, 2013 and rules there under1.

‘Board of Directors’ or ‘Board’, in relation to the Company, means the collective body of the Directors 
of the Company

2.

‘Committee ‘ means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as constituted or 
reconstituted by the Bo

3.

Company means Triton Valves Limited4.

‘Directors’  means Directors of the Company5.

‘Independent Director’ means a Director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 20136.

‘Key Managerial Personnel’ (KMP) means:7.

Chief Executive Officer and / or Managing Directora.

Whole-time Directorb.

Chief Financial Officerc.

Company Secretaryd.

Such other officer as may be prescribede.

‘Ministry’ means the Ministry of Corporate Affairs8.

Regulations' refers to and comprise of Companies Act, 2013, The Companies (Meeting of Board and its 
Powers) Rules, 2014, The Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, The 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial personnel) Rules, 2014, The Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, Listing Agreement and such 
other rules and provisions as applicable to the matters dealt in by this Policy

9.
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'Senior Management Personnel' for this purpose shall mean employees of the company who are members of 
its core management team excluding Board of Directors. It would comprise all members of the management 
and one level below the executive Director(s), including the functional / vertical heads.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not defined herein but 
defined in the Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended from time to time shall have the meaning 
respectively assigned to them therein.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not defined herein but 
defined in the Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended from time to time shall have the meaning 
respectively assigned to them therein.

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Guiding Principles for Constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Committee will meet at such intervals as deems fit to carry out the objectives set out in the Policy. A 
quorum of two members) is required to be present for the proceedings to take place. The Committee 
members may attend the meeting physically or via permitted audio-visual mode, subject to the provisions 
of the applicable Regulations. The Committee shall have the authority to call such employee(s), senior 
official(s) and / or externals, as it deems fit. The Company Secretary shall act as Secretary to the 
Committee.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of the following Directors:

Committee Members

Name

Dr.B.R.Pai

Category

Independent Director

Mr.S.K.Welling Independent Director

Designation

Chairman

Member

Mrs. Anuradha M. Gokarn Non-Executive Director Member

Functions of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall, inter-alia, perform the following functions:

1. Identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management 
in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and 
shall carry out evaluation of every Director's performance

2. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director 
and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors, key managerial 
personnel and other employees

3. Ensure that the Board comprises of a balanced combination of Executive Directors and Non-executive 
Directors and also the Independent Directors

4. Devise framework to ensure that Directors are inducted through suitable familiarization process 
covering their roles, responsibility and liability

5. Oversee the formulation and implementation of ESOP Schemes, its administration, supervision, and 
formulating detailed terms and conditions in accordance with SEBI Guidelines
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6. Decide / approve details of fixed components and performance linked incentives along with the 
performance criteria

7. Devise a policy on Board diversity

8. Formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board

9. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall, formulate the Remuneration Policy of the Company

10. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall assist the Board in ensuring that plans are in place 
for orderly succession for appointments to the Board and to senior management

The Chairman of the nomination and remuneration committee could be present at the Annual General 
Meeting, to answer the shareholders' queries. However, it would be up to the Chairman to decide who 
should answer the queries.

Provided that Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall set up mechanism to carry out its functions 
and is further authorized to delegate any / all of its powers to any of the Directors and / or officers of the 
Company, as deemed necessary for proper and expeditious execution.

3. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

This Policy is applicable to:

1. Directors viz. Executive, Non-executive and Independent

2. Key Managerial Personnel

3. Senior Management Personnel

4. Other Employees of the Company

4. Appointment of Director, KMP and Senior Management

1. The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the 
person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the Board 
his / her appointment

2. A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he / she is 
considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise 
and experience possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned position.

3. Appointment of Independent Directors is subject to compliance of provisions of section 149 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with schedule IV and rules thereunder

4. The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time Director who
has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position may 
be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a Special 
Resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the 
justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy years.

5. Term / Tenure
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Managing Director / Whole-time Director

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Executive Director, Managing Director or Executive 
Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year 
before the expiry of term.



Independent Director

Subject to the provisions of the applicable Regulations, an Independent Director shall hold office for a 
term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment 
on passing of a Special Resolution by the Company and disclosure(s) of such appointment in the Board's 
report.

Provided that a person who has already served as an Independent Director for five years or more in a 
company as on October 1, 2014 shall be eligible for appointment, on completion of his present term, for 
one more term of up to five years only.

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such Independent 
Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an 
Independent  Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three 
years, be  appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or 
indirectly.

However, if a person who has already served as an Independent Director for 5 years or more in the Company 
as on 1st October, 2014 or such other date as may be determined by the Committee as per regulatory 
requirement, he / she shall be eligible for appointment for one more term of 5 years only.

At the time of appointment of Independent Director, it should be ensured that number of Boards on 
which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent 
Director and  three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a 
Whole-time Director of a listed Company or such prescribed period by the Statutory Authority from 
time to time.

6. Training of Independent Directors

1. The company shall provide suitable training to Independent Directors to familiarize them with the 
company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the company, nature of the industry in which the 
company operates, business model of the company, etc.

2. The details of such training imparted shall be disclosed in the Annual Report

7. Evaluation

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior Management 
Personnel at regular interval (yearly).

8. Removal

The Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP 
or Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and all other 
applicable Acts, Rules and Regulations, if any.

10. Retirement

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the 
Regulations and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the 
Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position / remuneration or otherwise even after 
attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.
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11. Matters relating to the remuneration, perquisites for the Whole-time Director, KMP and 
Senior Management Personnel

1. The remuneration / compensation / profit-linked commission etc. to the Whole-time Director, 
Directors and Independent Directors will be determined by the Committee and recommended to the 
Board for approval. The remuneration / compensation / profit-linked commission etc. shall be in 
accordance with the percentage / slabs / conditions laid down in the Articles of Association of the 
Company, Act and shall be subject to the prior / post approval of the shareholders of the Company and 
Central Government, wherever required

2. As regards the remuneration of KMP, Senior Management Personnel and other employees, the 
determination shall be effected by way of annual presentation before the Committee by Principal – HR
and / or by the Chief Financial Officer, which would have requisite details. The Committee shall 
peruse the same and approve accordingly.

3. Increments to the existing remuneration / compensation structure shall be approved by the Committee.
Increments to the Whole Time Director(s) should be within the slabs approved by the Shareholders. 
Increments will be effective from 1st April in respect of a Whole-time Director as well as in respect of 
other employees of the Company, unless otherwise decided.

4. Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Whole-time Director, Chief Executive 
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and any other employees for indemnifying them 
against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the 
remuneration payable to any such personnel. Provided that if such person is proved to be guilty, the 
premium paid on such insurance shall be treated as part of the remuneration

4. Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Whole-time Director, Chief Executive 
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and any other employees for indemnifying them 
against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the 
remuneration payable to any such personnel. Provided that if such person is proved to be guilty, the 
premium paid on such insurance shall be treated as part of the remuneration

12. Remuneration to Whole-time / Executive / Managing Director 

The Whole-time Director shall be eligible for remuneration as may be approved by the Shareholders of the 
Company on the recommendation of the Committee and the Board of Directors. The break-up of the pay 
scale, performance bonus and quantum of perquisites including, employer's contribution to P.F, pension 
/scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and approved by the Board on the 
recommendation of the Committee and shall be within the overall remuneration approved by the 
shareholders and Central Government, wherever required.

Minimum Remuneration

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay 
remuneration to its Whole-time Director in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
if it is not able to comply with such provisions, then with the previous approval of the Central Government.

Provisions for excess remuneration

If any Whole-time Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration any such sums 
in excess of the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 or without the prior sanction of the 
Central Government, where required, he / she shall refund such sums to the Company and until such sum 
is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable 
to it unless permitted by the Central Government.
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13. Remuneration to Non-executive / Independent Director 

The Non-executive Independent Directors of the Company shall be paid sitting fees as per the applicable 
Regulations and no sitting fee is paid to Non-executive Non Independent Directors. The quantum of sitting 
fees will be determined as per the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. Further the boarding and lodging expenses shall be 
reimbursed to the Directors based out of Mumbai.

Profit-linked Commission

The profit-linked Commission shall be paid within the monetary limit approved by the shareholders of the 
Company subject to the same not exceeding 1% of the net profits of the Company computed as per the 
applicable provisions of the Regulations.

Stock Options

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, an Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of 
the Company. Only such employees of the Company and its subsidiaries as approved by the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee will be granted ESOPs.

14. Remuneration to KMP, Senior Management Personnel and Other Employees

The KMP, Senior Management Personnel and other employees of the Company shall be paid monthly 
remuneration as per the Company's HR policies and / or as may approved by the Committee. The break-up 
of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, employer's contribution to P.F, pension scheme, 
medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be as per the Company's HR policies.

The Principal – HR and / or the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, will make org-wide annual 
presentation(s) before the Committee which would have requisite details setting out the proposed 
performance bonus payouts for the current financial year as well as the proposed increments for the next 
financial year. The Committee shall peruse and approve the same unless required under relevant 
regulations, to refer the same to the Board of Directors and / or Shareholders of the Company.

This Remuneration Policy shall apply to all future / continuing employment / engagement(s) with the 
Company. In other respects, the Remuneration Policy shall be of guidance for the Board. Any departure from 
the policy shall be recorded and reasoned in the Committee and Board meeting minutes.

The remuneration for KMP and Senior Managerial Personnel and other employees of the Company shall be 
approved by the Committee based on the org-wide recommendation / presentation by the Principal – HR 
and / or the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. In case any of the relevant regulations require that 
remuneration of KMPs or any other officer is to be specifically approved by the Committee and / or the 
Board of Directors then such approval will be accordingly procured.

15. Dissemination

The details of the Policy and the evaluation criteria as applicable shall be published on Company's website 
and accordingly disclosed in the Annual Report as part of Board's report therein.

16. Amendments to the Policy

The Board of Directors on its own and / or as per the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee can amend this Policy, as and when deemed fit.

In case of any amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc. issued by the relevant authorities, not being 
consistent with the provisions laid down under this Policy, then such amendment(s), clarification(s), 
circular(s) etc. shall prevail upon the provisions hereunder and this Policy shall stand amended accordingly 
from the effective date as laid down under such amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Your Company's primary business is Design, Manufacture and Sale of automotive tyre valves, valve cores
and accessories. Your Company is a major Original Equipment (OE) supplier to both the tyre and the 
automobile industries. The size of the Indian tyre valve business is estimated at approximately Rs.275 crore
in the organized sector during 2014-15. Exports do not constitute a significant proportion of this turnover. 
Four manufacturers contribute over 90% of the total production and sales.

Tyre Valve Industry Structure and Developments

At the macro-economic level, in the Financial Year 2014-15 the Indian economy began showing signs of 
industrial production recovery.  Currently at USD 2 Trillion, the Indian economy is expected to move to USD 
2.2 Trillion for 2015-2016. India poised to become a USD 8-10 Trillion economy within next decade. The 
economy is expected to grow at 7.4% in 2014-15 and between 8%-8.5% in 2015-16. Policies like “Make In 
India” are expected to boost manufacturing. Higher budgetary allocations of USD 21 Billion for 2015-2016 
in infrastructure will further boost capital formation and investments. While inflation remained a threat in 
FY14-15, CPI Inflation (Retail Inflation) stands at 5.31% while WPI stands at 0.39% in May 2015. The targeted
inflation by January 2016 is 5%. This bodes well for interest rate reductions. 

Despite all of this, there is still little sign of recovery in the two-wheeler segment or the passenger car 
segment is very minimal. Although there was an expectation from the automobile industry of a policy 
stimulus, significant policy initiatives to stimulate growth have been largely absent. Overall production of 
automobiles of all categories in India grew by 8.2% over the previous year. Despite an improvement in 
consumer sentiment post the general elections, demand for two-wheelers and passenger vehicles have 
failed to witness meaningful recovery, partly impacted by slowdown in rural markets.

Passenger vehicles' volumes grew at 4% in FY15. Two-wheeler demand slowed down, especially in rural 
markets with motorcycle sales growing just 4% in FY15 while scooters grew 35% in FY15. The three-wheeler
segment recorded a growth in sales by 15.4%. The commercial vehicle segment recorded negative growth 
of 7.7%. The farm segment recorded a decline in growth by 12.6% over the previous year. Tractors 
de-grew by 13% in FY15, impacted by below average monsoon and unseasonal rains in March 2015. There is
a rainbow of hope in this seemingly bleak environment. Medium & Heavy Commercial Vehicle demand is 
slowly recovering, aided by improving fleet utilization and fleet operators' profitability. LCVs are also 
showing initial signs of bottoming out. 

The Rs. 52,500 crore Indian tyre industry is estimated to have grown at approx. 9-10% in volumes during 
Financial Year 2014-15. Tube production is estimated to have recorded very marginal growth or a reduction 
in almost all categories except for the motorcycle segment. The industry as a whole experienced a year of 
stagnation and under-utilization of capacities as a result of poor market conditions.  

Opportunities and Threats

Although the general economic environment is not conducive for strong growth, your Company has a 
competitive advantage in the market due to its superior technology, large installed capacities in all product
categories, high quality products, competitive pricing and approvals from almost every tyre and vehicle 
manufacturer in the country. Your Company holds the market leader position in every segment that it 
operates in, from two and three wheelers to passenger cars, trucks & buses and off-the-Road vehicles. 
These strengths can be leveraged to further widen the customer base, increase the product offerings and 
improve Company's overall performance.

The market scenario in India is likely to continue to be subdued in the first half of FY 2016. Under these 
circumstances, payments from some customers can tend to be delayed. This can adversely affect cash-flows
and can put an additional interest burden on the Company due to increased utilization of working capital. 
The primary raw materials used in manufacturing valves are highly volatile commodities, namely brass 
(which is an alloy of copper and zinc) and synthetic rubber. Continued volatility in the prices of these 
commodities can pose a threat to profitability. The Company is also a net importer; hence volatility in 
currency rates also poses a threat to profitability. Competition in the tyre valve industry is also likely to 
intensify with domestic competitors adding capacities and new products while low priced imports from 
China are also a potential threat. 

30



31

The Company manufactures automobile tyre valves, valve cores and accessories. The sales figures net of 
discounts and excise duties in the domestic and export segments are shown below:

Segment-wise Performance  

Overall Sales

Domestic Sales

2014-15
(Rs. in Crore)

169.50

151.61

Export Sales 17.89

160.60

141.80

2013-14
(Rs. in Crore)

18.80

The overall outlook for the Financial Year 2015-16 is positive. Analysts and industry watchers expect the 

automobile industry to grow by 5-7% during the year ahead. Economic recovery and fuel price deflation are 

expected to fuel passenger and commercial vehicles' demand. Fuel price deflation, currently at multi-year 

low, coupled with improving macro environment and consumer sentiment would help in reviving passenger 

vehicle demand, especially for entry-level cars. While commercial vehicles demand would be related to 

improvement in freight availability, however, improving fleet operators' health (due to moderating cost 

pressures and improvement in demand) would kick start replacement cycle, which got deferred by 2-3 

years. Competitive intensity is expected to gather momentum across all segments, especially in passenger 

vehicles and commercial vehicles, with several launches in the pipeline all the major companies. 

Outlook

Anticipating revived growth and a jump in demand, several Indian automotive companies plan to make large 

investments to increase capacity. While Tata Motors will invest more than INR 40.8 billion (US$651million) 

to expand its plant at Chakan in Pune district, Mahindra and Mahindra (M&M) and Volkswagen expect to 

invest INR 40.8 billion (US$651 million) and INR 15.4 billion (US$246 million), respectively, in their own 

plants in Pune. Bajaj Auto will invest INR 20.4 billion (US$326 million) to expand its facility in Aurangabad.

Moreover, a number of foreign companies are looking to invest in India's automotive sector. For instance, 

China Electric Vehicle Consortium Pvt Ltd. has decided to make Gujarat's Sanand an electric-vehicle (EV) 

manufacturing hub, at an estimated investment of INR 6.3 billion (US$100 million). Japan's Honda Motors 

plans to make its unit in Rajasthan a manufacturing base for supply of manual transmissions to emerging 

markets across Asia and Latin America. In addition, Honda intends to set up the world's largest scooter plant

in Gujarat. 

Moreover, many foreign automobile companies with an existing presence in India are looking to expand their

presence. French automobile manufacturer Renault plans to launch two new models as well as enter new 

verticals, including the used-car business, in India in the coming year. Ferrari and Maserati plan to establish 

marketing and sales operations in India and sell cars there starting in Fy2016.

Your Company expects to grow at a rate higher than that of the industry and has developed plans to achieve 

the same. The Company also expects to improve its operating profits by improving operating efficiencies 

and aggressive cost cutting.

The operations of the Company relate to the manufacture and sale of automotive tyre valves, cores and 

accessories which constitute only one major business segment. From the risk perspective, this can be 

viewed as one of the strategic risk factors since the Company does not currently posses a diversified set of 

products and customers beyond the automobile and tyre industries. Operationally, the Company has only one 

Risks and Concerns
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manufacturing location at Mysore and exposure to only one geographical region. Exports do not contribute 

significantly to the turnover of the Company. The Board of Directors has been apprised of the strategic and 

operational risks identified by the Company and the initiatives taken to mitigate them.

The Company has proper and adequate systems of internal controls. Internal audits and checks are carried 

out at regular intervals. An audit committee headed by an Independent Director reviews control systems 

and their adequacy.

Internal Control Systems and Their Adequacy

The details of the financial performance of the Company appear in the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account 

and other financial statements. Highlights for the year 2014-15 are as under:

Discussion on Financial Performance with respect to Operational Performance

Net Sales

Other Income

169.50

0.33

2014-15
(Rs. in Crore)

Profit before tax 9.78

The financial performance of the Company has been explained in the Directors' Report of the Company for 

the year 2015 appearing separately.

Human Resources are a key focus area of the Company. The Company endeavors to attract and develop the 

best talent available in each area of its operations. The Company's policy is to create a conducive 

environment for nurturing talent and developing the requisite skills needed to keep pace with the ever-

changing needs of the market. Training is imparted to employees at all levels covering both technical and

behavioral aspects.

Human Resources

The Industrial Relations scenario during the year under review was smooth. The Company has an excellent 

track record in this regard and has maintained cordial relationships with all its employees. The Company has

signed a Long Term Agreement (LTA) with the union for a four year period ending 30th September 2018.  

The employees and the recognized union continue to play a positive and constructive role in the growth and 

development of the Company. 

Certain statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's views about the 

industry, expectations, objectives, etc... may be forward looking within the meaning of applicable laws and

regulations. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed in the statement. Factors like supply 

and demand situations, input prices and their availability, changes in government regulations, economic 

developments, etc… may influence the Company's operations or performance. 

Cautionary Statement
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The Company has been committed to the highest standards of Corporate Governance since its inception. 
Corporate Governance encompasses the values, ethics and the best business practices followed by the 
Company.  The Company believes that a strong Corporate Governance policy is indispensable for healthy 
business growth and is an important instrument of investor protection.  Good Corporate Governance 
provides an appropriate framework for the Board and the Management to achieve the objectives that are in
the interest of the Company and the Shareholders.

Company's Philosophy on Corporate Governance

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR 2014-15

Board of Directors

i. The composition of the Board is in conformity with Clause 49(II)(A) of the listing agreements with 
stock exchange. The Board of Directors of the Company consists of 4 Directors out of which one is 
Executive, one is Non-Executive (woman) and two are Independent Directors.  The Chairman of the 
Board is Non-executive. 

ii. The Board of Directors met four times during the year on 30th May 2014, 14th August 2014, 18th 
October 2014 and 30th January 2015.

iii. The particulars of Directors and their attendance at Board Meetings  are given below:

Name of Director

Mr.Aditya M. Gokarn

Mrs. Anuradha M. Gokarn

Dr. B.R.Pai

Mr.S.K.Welling

Number of 
Board Meetings 

attended

Category
Whether 
attended 
last AGM

Number of 
Directorship in other 

Indian companies

Managing Director 4 Yes Nil

Non-executive  Director 4 Yes Nil

Non-executive 
Independent Director

4 Yes 1

Non-executive 
Independent Director

4 Yes 3

Independent Directors:

Independent Directors play a key role in the decision-making process of the Board. They are committed 
to act in the best interest of the Company and oversee the performance of the management periodically.

The Company and its Board benefit immensely from the indepth knowledge, experience and expertise of
its Independent Directors in achieving its desired level of business performance and good corporate 
governance.

None of the Independent Directors are promoters of the Company and are not related to the promoters
of the Company. The Independent Directors have given a declaration to the Company confirming 
adherence to the code of conduct/criteria of independence as required under the revised Clause 49 of 
the listing agreement and also the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and related rules and Schedule
IV of the said Act.

The Company has in place the evaluation criteria for the performance evaluation of Independent Directors 
wherein their preparation, deliberations,  effective participation, ethical values, skill and knowledge to 
discharge their duties as Independent Directors are rated by all the Directors excluding Director being 
evaluated.
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The Independent Directors informed the board that a meeting of Independent Directors was held on 13th 
December 2014 and certain important aspect of the New Companies Act 2013 were discussed. It was also 
discussed that the above meeting was held for the first time and the matters to be discussed at such 
meetings would be structured at the next meeting.

Audit Committee

The Committee Members and their attendance is as under

In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement, entered into by the 
Company with Stock Exchanges, as amended from time to time, this policy on nomination and remuneration 
of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), Senior Management and other employees of the Company has 
been formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company and approved by the 
Board of Directors vide its Resolution dated May 30, 2014. This policy shall act as a guideline for 
determining, inter-alia, qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director, matters relating

The Company has in place a familiarization programme for Independent Directors, as per which the 
Independent Directors were familiarized within their roles, rights, responsibilities, nature and the business 
model of the Company and the said policy is placed on the website of the Company at the link
www.tritonvalves.com.

i. The Audit Committee consists of three members two of which are Independent Directors and one

Non-executive Director (woman). The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director. The 

Managing Director, Internal Auditors and Statutory Auditors are invitees to the Meetings. The Vice 

President Finance of the Company acts as Secretary to the Audit Committee.

ii. The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee are as set out hereunder:

To oversee the financial reporting system of the Company.

To review with the Management the financial statements of every quarter before submission to 

the Board.

-  

-  

To review the annual financial statements and Auditors' report thereon.-  

To review the scope and coverage of the Internal Audit function and reporting structure.-  

To review the efficiency of the internal control system.-  

To review the findings of any internal investigation and to report these to the Board.-  

To review the Company's financial and risk management policies and strategies.-  

To recommend the appointment of External Auditors and Internal Auditors and fixation of their fees.-  

To monitor the quality of Internal and Statutory Audit.-  

Name 

Dr. B.R.Pai

Category

Independent

Mr. S.K.Welling

No. of 
Meetings held

4

No. of Meetings 
attended

Mrs. Anuradha M. Gokarn Non-Executive

Independent 4

4

4

4

4

Nomination and Remuneration Committee:



35

Remuneration to Non- Executive Directors:

to the remuneration, appointment, removal and evaluation of performance of the Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel, Senior Management and other employees. Nomination and remuneration policy is placed on the 
Company's Website www.tritonvalves.com and is also appended to the Board's Report as Annexure 5.  

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee reviews and recommends to the Board the appointment of and
remuneration payable to Managerial persons.

The Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fees for attending the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings.
They are also paid commission on net profit not exceeding one percent of the net profit in aggregate as 
sanctioned by the Shareholders by a Special Resolution in the AGM held on 15th July 2011.

The Remuneration Committee consists of 3 members out of which two are Independent Directors and one is 
Non Executive Director.

The Committee members and their attendance is as under. 

Name 

Dr. B.R.Pai

Category

Independent

Mr. S.K.Welling

No. of 
Meetings held

1

No. of Meetings 
attended

Mrs. Anuradha M. Gokarn Non-Executive

Independent 1

1

1

1

1

Remuneration paid to Directors during 2014-15

Name of Director

Mrs. Anuradha M. Gokarn

Dr.B.R.Pai

Mr.Aditya M. Gokarn

Mr.S.K.Welling

Sitting Fees

1,00,000

Salaries & 
Perquisites

64,97,522*

Commission

1,00,000 3,51,459

3,51,459

1,00,000 3,51,459

*Does not include contribution to PF and Gratuity which are as per the rules of the Company

Details of shares of the Company held by Non-Executive Directors as on 31st March 2015 are as below:

Name of Director

Mrs. Anuradha M. Gokarn

Dr.B.R.Pai

Mr.S.K.Welling

Number of Shares

280041

1300

NIL

During the year under review the Company approved a Nomination and Remuneration policy.
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As required under Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013, the stake holder relationship committee has been
constituted with following members with their role and responsibilities:

Stake holder relationship Committee:

1.  Dr. B.R.Pai, Chairman

2.  Mr. S.K.Welling, Member

3.  Mr. Aditya M. Gokarn, Member

The terms of reference of the committee inter-alia include review mechanism adopted by the Company for 
redressing the Shareholders complaints and review the status of Complaints of the stakeholders if any.

The Committee reviews/approves, processes, standard operating procedures and initiatives undertaken by 
the Company relating to investor service, compliance with requirements related to listing agreements and 
corporate governance, shareholding pattern, periodical transfer/transmissions of shares, de-materialisation 
of shares, issue of duplicate certificates of the securities issued by the Company and review of status of 
redressal of complaints, if any lodged with authorities including SEBI, Registrar of Companies, etc by the 
Shareholders, compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and various other status. 

The particulars of members of the Committee, number of the meetings, attended/held during the year 
under review are as under. 

Name 

Dr. B.R.Pai

Category

Independent

Mr. S.K.Welling

No. of 
Meetings held

1

No. of Meetings 
attended

Mrs. Anuradha M. Gokarn Managing Director

Independent 1

1

1

1

1

As required under Section 134(3)(n) of the Companies Act 2013 and listing agreement. The Risk Management 
Committee has been constituted and a policy has been formulated defiling roles and responsibilities of the 
Committee and reviewing of the risk management plan to the Committee and such other functions. The 
committee consists of following:

Risk Management Committee:

1.  Dr. B.R.Pai, Chairman

2.  Mr. S.K.Welling, Member

3.  Mr. Aditya M. Gokarn, Member

Risk Management policy of the Company is available in the Company's website; www.tritonvalves.com.

The Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and has formulated a policy of 
CSR. The committee consists of following:

CSR COMMITTEE

1.  Mr. S.K.Welling, Chairman

2.  Dr. B.R.Pai, Member

3.  Mrs. Anuradha M. Gokarn, Member
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The CSR Policy of the Company is available in Company's website www.tritonvalves.com. However the 

Company does not fall under the threshold limit as prescribed under Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013.

Code of Conduct:

The Company has framed and adopted a code of conduct for its Directors and senior management personnel, 

duly approved by the Board. For the year under review, all the Directors and senior management personnel 

have affirmed compliance with the provisions of the said code. A declaration from the Managing Director of 

the Company in terms of Clause 49(II)(E) is placed at the end of this report and the above affirmations are 

placed before the Board for information.

Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism:

The Company has established a whistle blower policy/vigil mechanism for the Directors and employees to 

enable them to report concern about unethical behaviors, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the 

Company's Code of Conduct. Under this mechanism, the improper practice, if any in the Company, can be 

directly reported the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The details of establishment of the mechanism have been disclosed by the Company on its website 

www.tritonvalves.com.

Related party Transactions:

The Company has a policy in place on the related party transitions. The details of the related party 

transactions entered into by the Company are included in the notes forming part of the financial statement

(Note No 33 of the Annual Accounts) and related party transactions policy is displayed in the Company's 

website and weblink is:  www.tritonvalves.com. Particulars of such contracts/arrangement are provided as

an annexure to this report of Directors.

Compliance with Accounting Standards:

The Company has complied with the applicable Accounting Standards notified by the Companies (Accounting

Standards) Rules 2006, the Financial statements for the year have been prepared in accordance with and in

compliance of the revised Schedule III notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

Details of Annual/Extraordinary General Meetings 

Location and time of General Meetings held since 2012

Year Location Date Special Resolutions

2012 Hotel Ajantha, 22-A,  
MG Road, Bangalore-560001

25.07.2012 No Special Resolutions

No. of Shares

AGM

Time

04.30 PM

2013 AGM Hotel Ramada, 11, 
Park Road, Bangalore-560051

22.07.2013 03.30 PM Appointment of 
Mr. Aditya M Gokarn as 
Managing Director

2014 AGM The Gateway Hotel, 
Residency Road, 
Bangalore-560025

14.08.2014 04.00 PM Borrowing powers of 
the Board of Directors
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Disclosures:

The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements as stipulated under clause 49 of the listing 

agreement. The quarterly compliance status reports on corporate governance are submitted by the 

Company to the stock exchanges within the prescribed time limit, duly signed the Compliance officer of the 

Company. The Corporate Governance Reports are uploaded in the Company's website for the information of 

all stakeholders.

i. Significant related party transactions:

The Company has entered into contract for purchase of goods of aggregate value of Rs.33.34 lakhs 

with M/s Suvardhan a partnership firm in which Mrs. Anuradha M.Gokarn, Non-executive Director 

and Mr. Aditya M.Gokarn, Managing Director are interested as partners. 

ii. i.There are no non-compliances, penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by the Stock 

Exchange or SEBI or any other statutory authorities on any matter related to the Capital Markets 

during the last three years.

iii. Report on Corporate Governance:

Means of Communication:

Quarterly results are published in one English daily, Business Standard and in one Kannada daily, Samyukta 

Karnataka.  All quarterly results are sent to the Stock Exchanges. The financial results are displayed on the 

Company's website www.tritonvalves.com and on the Bombay Stock Exchange www.bseindia.com

The Management Discussion & Analysis is attached to the Directors' Report and forms part of this Annual Report.

1

2

Time & Date of AGM

3

4.00 PM on 19th August 2015

4

Venue of AGM The Gateway Hotel, Residency Road, Bangalore-560025

Dates of Book closure 10th August 2015 to 19th August 2015

Financial Year 1st April to 31st March each year

5 Dividend Payment Date On or before 18th September 2015

6 The equity shares of Rs.10/- each 
listed at

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited  
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai-400 001

7 Registered Office Sunrise Chambers, 22, Ulsoor Road, Bangalore-560 042

8 Stock Code 505978

9 Demat ISIN No. INE440G01017

10 Registrar & Transfer Agents Canbank Computer Services Limited, 218, J.P.Royale, 1st Floor, 
2nd Main, Sampige Road, Malleswaram, Banglore-560 003

11 Investor correspondence  Investor correspondence may be addressed to:
V.Sridhar, Compliance Officer, Triton Valves Limited, 
Sunrise Chambers, 22, Ulsoor Road, Bangalore-560042
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12. Stock Market Price Data (BSE)

Month

Triton Valves  Share Price BSE SENSEX

High

Apr-14

May-14

June-14

July-14

Aug-14

Sept-14

Oct-14

Nov-14

Dec-14

Jan-15

Feb-15

Mar-15

385.00

489.00

627.00

610.00

724.90

927.75

981.70

1197.40

1279.95

1240.00

1090.00

1169.00

Low

306.00

318.00

459.00

485.00

476.00

657.00

730.00

896.00

1005.00

917.50

950.00

845.00

High

22939.11

25375.63

25725.12

26300.17

26674.38

27354.99

27894.32

28822.37

28809.64

29844.16

29560.32

30024.74

Low

22197.51

22277.04

24270.20

24892.00

25232.82

26220.49

25910.77

27739.56

26469.42

26766.12

28044.49

27248.45

13. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31.03.2015

1-500

501-1000

1001-5000

5001-10000

10001 & above

No. of Equity shares held

251261

46297

108828

52092

531549

5624

65

51

7

7

25.38

4.68

10.99

5.26

53.69

No. of Shares No. of Shareholders % of Shareholders

14. Shareholding Pattern as on 31.03.2015

Promoters' Holding:

-Indian Promoters

-Foreign Promoters

Category

500004

Nil

50.51

No. of Shares held % of Shareholders

Persons Acting in Concert Nil

Sub- total 500004 50.51

Non Promoter Holding:

-Mutual Funds

-Banks, financial Institutions, Insurance companies

12500

Nil

1.26

Sub-Total 12500 1.26

Others:

Private Corporate Bodies

Indian Public

NRIs/OCBs

42963

430405

4155

4.34

43.47

0.42

Sub-Total 477523 48.23

Grand Total 990027 100.00
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The Company's shares are dematted with effect from April 2004 and trading in the Company's shares is 

permitted only in demat form. As on 31st March 2015, 939,183 Shares (94.86 %) are held in demat form and 

50,844 Shares (5.14 %) in physical form.

Share Transfer system

The transfer/transmission of shares in physical form is normally processed and completed within 21 days 

from the date of receipt of request. In the case of shares in electronic form, the transfers are processed by 

NSDL/CDSL through the respective Depository Participants.

There were no cases of loss of Share Certificates and no complaints either from SEBI or the Stock Exchanges. 

Thirty four Dividend warrants and ninety one dividend intimation letters were returned undelivered. 

There were 15 investor grievances during the year and all have been addressed and closed.

Certificate on Compliance with Code of Conduct

I hereby confirm that the Company has obtained from all the Members of the Board and Management 

personnel, affirmation that they have complied with the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors/

Management personnel for the Financial Year 2014-2015.

(Aditya M.Gokarn)
Managing Director
Bangalore

May 22nd 2015.

CEO/CFO Certificate Under Clause 49 (V)

To

The Board of Directors,

Triton Valves Limited

We have reviewed the financial statement and the cash flow statement of Triton Valves Limited for the 

year ended 31st march, 2015 and to the best of our knowledge and belief:

1.

i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or  

contain statements that might be misleading;

ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in 

compliance of existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations.

There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during 

the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violate the Company's Code of Conduct.

2.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and 

we have evaluated the effectiveness of Company's internal control system pertaining to financial 

reporting. We have not come across any reportable deficiencies in the design or operation of such 

internal controls.

3.
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Auditors' Certificate on Compliance with the conditions of Corporate
Governance under Clause 49 of the Listing agreement(s)

To

The Members,

Triton Valves Limited

We have examined the compliance to the conditions of Corporate Governance by Triton Valves Limited for 

the year ended 31st March 2015, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement(s) of the said Company 

with Stock Exchange(s).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our 

examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring 

the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of 

opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify 

that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of 

the above mentioned Listing Agreement(s).

We state that in respect of investor grievances received during the year ended 31st March 2015, no investor 

grievance is pending for a period exceeding one month as per the records maintained by the Company.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 

the effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.000515S

Place

Date

:  Bangalore

:  May 22, 2015

G. Srinivas
Partner

Membership No.086761

We have indicated to the Auditors and Audit Committee:4.

i) that there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

ii) that there are no significant changes in the accounting policies during the year; and

iii) I)that there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware. 

(V.Sridhar)

Vice President – Finance

Bangalore

May 22, 2015

(Aditya M.Gokarn)

Managing Director 
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2015

[Pursuant to section204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the   Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good Corporate practices by Triton Valves Limited (hereinafter called 'the Company'). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the Corporate 
conducts/Statutory compliances and expressing my opinion there on.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, Minute books, Forms and Returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and Authorized Representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, 
the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2015 complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, Minute books, Forms and Returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2015 according to the provisions of:

(I) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the Rules made there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent 
of External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2009;

We report that the Company has not issued any securities during the year under review hence the 
compliance of provisions under the above mentioned regulation is not applicable.

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

We report that the Company has not issued any securities under ESOP/ESPS during the year under 
review hence the compliance of provisions under the above mentioned regulation is not applicable.

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

We report that the Company has not issued any securities including debt securities during the year 
under review hence the compliance of provisions under the above mentioned regulation is not 
applicable.

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

The Company has not applied for delisting of Equity Shares in any Stock Exchanges and hence 
Compliance of provisions as mentioned above does not arise.  
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(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

The Company has not brought back any securities during the year under review and compliance 
provisions as mentioned under the said act are not applicable.

(vi) I further report that based on the Guidelines issued by the ICSI on the applicability of industry 
specific law as applicable to the Company and on the information received and records maintained, 
the Company has, in my opinion, complied with the provisions of industry specific law which are 
applicable to it:.

(a) The Environmental Protection Act, 1986.

(b) The Factories Act 1948.

(c )

(d)

(e)

The Water (Prevention and control of Pollution) Act, 1974.

The Air (Prevention and control of Pollution) Act, 1981.

The Hazardous Waste (Management and Handling) Rules, 1989.

I have not examined compliance with the applicable clauses of:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India as it was not notified 
by the Central Government.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of:

(i) The listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Stock Exchanges as applicable to the 
Company.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except:

The Company is yet to appoint Company Secretary within the purview of Section 203 of the Companies Act 
2013.

I further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There was no change in the composition of the Board 
of Directors during the year.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at 
the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through voting at the meeting. The Minutes of meetings are self explanatory 
with respect to dissenting members view if any.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations 
and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period there were no specific events/actions having a major bearing on 
the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc

Place
Date

:  Bangalore
:  22nd  May 2015

For S Kedarnath & Associates
     Company Secretaries

S. KEDARNATH
Company Secretary

C P No 4422 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an 
integral part of this report.
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Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

Date

Place

:  22nd  May 2015

:  Bangalore

For S Kedarnath & Associates

     Company Secretaries

S. KEDARNATH

Company Secretary

C P No 4422 

'Annexure A’

1.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of Secretarial Records. The verification was done on

test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in the secretarial records. We believe that the 

processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

2.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of Financial records and Books of Accounts 

of the Company including records under Income Tax Act, Central Excise Act, Customs Act, Central 

and State Sales Tax Act.  

3.

Wherever required, the Company has represented about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations 

and happening of events etc as applicable from time to time.

4.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of Management. Our examination was limited to the verification of 

procedures on test basis.

5.

The secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of 

the efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

6.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Triton Valves Limited(“the Company”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at  March 31, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement 
for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information

TO THE MEMBERS OF TRITON VALVES LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

Auditor's Responsibility

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters 
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of 
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the 
Company's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates 
made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the financial statements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state 
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2015, of its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that 
date.

Opinion
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure I, a 

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

1.

As required by Section143 (3) of the Act, we report that:2.

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as 

it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this

Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 

under Section133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on March 31, 2015 taken 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2015 from 

being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanations given to us: 

i) The  Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there

were any material foreseeable losses;

iii) In the current year there has been delay of 47 days in transferring amounts, required to be 

transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

Place

Date

:  Bangalore

:  22nd May 2015

For Brahmayya & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.000515S

G.Srinivas

Partner

Membership No.086761



Annexure I to Independent Auditors' Report

In respect of the Company's Fixed Assets:(i)

(a) As per the information and explanation provided to us, the Company has maintained proper records 
showing full Particulars including quantitative details and location of fixed assets. 

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and the discrepancies 
identified on such verification have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts.

In respect of the Company's inventories:(ii)

(a) The Management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during 
the year;

(b) The procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the Management are reasonable 
and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business;

(c) The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory and no material discrepancies were noticed 
on physical verification;

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to any company, firm or other parties 
listed in the Register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, clauses (iii) (a)  & (iii) (b) 
of paragraph 3 of Order are not applicable for the year;

(iii)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is adequate internal 
control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business, for the 
purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. Further, during the course 
of our audit, we have not observed any major weakness or continuing failure to correct any major 
weakness in the aforesaid internal control system;

(iv)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits 
within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under;

(v)

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance 
of cost records under of sub section (1), of Section 148 of the Act, for the Company;

(vi)

In respect of the Company's Statutory dues:(vii)

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the records as produced 
and examined by us, in our opinion, except slight delays in few cases, the Company is regular in 
depositing with appropriate authorities the undisputed statutory dues including Income Tax, Sales 
Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other statutory dues to the extent applicable 
to it. There are no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at March 31, 2015 for a period of more 
than six months from the date they became payable;

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of Sales Tax, 
Income Tax, Customs Duty, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Excise Duty, and Cess which have not been 
deposited on account of dispute;

(c) Details of dues of, Income-tax, Sales tax, Wealth tax, Service Tax, Custom duty, Excise duty, Value 
Added Tax and Cess which have not been deposited as on  March 31, 2015 on account of disputes 
are given below.

Statute Nature of Dues Forum where 
Dispute is pending

Period to which the 
amount relates

Income Tax Act Income Tax Income Tax apeallate 
Tribunal (Bangalore)  

AY 2010-11

Period to which the 
amount relates

23,27,115

47



(d) There are no amounts that are due to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made 

thereunder.

48

The Company does not have accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and it has not incurred 

cash losses in the current and immediately preceding financial year;

(vii)

Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the management, 

we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial 

institution or banks. The Company did not have any outstanding dues in respect of debenture holders 

during the year;

(ix)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee for 

loans taken by others from bank or financial institutions;

(x)

Based on the information and explanations given to us by the Management, term loans were applied for 

the purpose for which the loans were obtained;

(xi)

Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the 

generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given 

to us, we have not come across any instance of fraud on or by the Company, has been noticed or 

reported during course of our audit, nor we have been informed of any such case by the Management.

(xii)

Place
Date

:  Bangalore
:  22nd May 2015

For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.000515S

G.Srinivas
Partner

Membership No.086761
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2015
(Amount in Rupees)

As at
31st March 2015

I. 

(1) Shareholders’ funds

(a) Share capital 3 9,900,270

(b) Reserves and surplus 4 505,701,834

515,602,104
(2) Non-current liabilities

(a) Long-term borrowings 5 45,570,428

(b) Deferred tax liability (net) 6 32,588,594

(c) Other long-term liabilities 7 195,000

78,354,022
(3) Current liabilities

(a) Short-term borrowings 9 376,494,197

(b) Trade payables 10 103,523,127

(c) Other current liabilities 11 88,057,900

(d) Short-term provisions 8 43,940,894

612,016,118   
1,205,972,244

II. 

(1) Non-current assets

(a) Fixed assets

(i) Tangible assets   12 555,786,259

(ii) Intangible assets   13 1,035,628

(iii) Capital work-in-progress   12 105,77,593

(b) Non-current investments 14 73,012

(c) Long-term loans and advances 15 17,902,552

585,375,044

(2) Current assets

(a) Inventories 17 258,637,415

(b) Trade receivables  16 325,030,169

(c) Cash and Bank Balances 18 1,594,839

(d) Short-term loans and advances 15 35,334,777

620,597,200

TOTAL 1,205,972,244

         9,900,270               

     470,084,828           

   479,985,098         

       100,074,251           

       42,954,811             

            195,000                

     143,224,062         

     399,444,657           

     130,919,646           

       105,983,755           

       28,648,939             

664,996,996

 1,288,206,156       

     641,686,990           
         1,294,535               
       88,08,830               
              73,012                   
       13,140,865             
   665,004,232         

     248,541,721           
     351,362,514           
         916,410                

       22,381,279             
   623,201,924         

 1,288,206,156       
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

Notes

The accompanying notes from 1 to 37 are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

S.K.Welling
Chairman

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Aditya M. Gokarn
  Managing Director

Place:Bengaluru
Date: 22nd May 2015

G. Srinivas
Partner
Membership no.: 086761

For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 000515S

31st March 2014
As at

Equity and Liabilities

Assets

TOTAL
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2015

(Amount in Rupees)

Notes
For the year ended  

31st March 2015

For the year ended  

31st March2014

19           1,605,968,297

               775,012

     1,606,743,309

          1,017,937,365

            37,923,922

            170,675,610

            197,752,359

     1,424,289,257

         182,454,052

             67,928,181

             75,454,237

           39,071,634

             12,208,729

            (2,208,527)

               -

           10,000,202

         29,071,433

                     29.36

2.1

The accompanying notes from 1 to 37 are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

S.K.Welling
Chairman

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Aditya M. Gokarn
  Managing Director

Place:Bengaluru
Date: 22nd May 2015

G. Srinivas

Partner

Membership no.: 086761

For Brahmayya & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm registration number: 000515S

3,290,909

1,698,309,740

1,056,594,450

(13,113,352)

194,430,183

217,060,434

 1,454,971,715

243,338,025

 79,672,237

 65,819,013

 97,846,775

 31,742,563              
(10,366,217)               

  2,398,893                          
23,775,239            
74,071,536            

74.82

1,695,018,831

20 

21

22

23 

24 

25 

26 

Income

Expenses

(b) 

work-in-progress.

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 

amortization (EBITDA)

 [(I) - (II)]

Depreciation and amortization expense

V.

Tax expenses

Total tax expense

Summary of significant accounting policies

Revenue from operations

Other income

Total Revenue (I)

I.

(a) 

(b)

II.

(a) 

(c) 

(d) 

Total (II)

Current tax 

Deferred tax

MAT Credit Reversal for earlier years  

VIII. 

Basic and Diluted 

Cost of materials consumed

Changes in inventories of finished goods,

Employee benefit expenses

Other expenses

III. 

IV. 

Finance costs

VI. Profit / (Loss) before tax (III-IV-V) 

VII.

Profit/(loss) for the year (VI-VII)

IX Earnings per equity share
[nominal value of share Rs.10/- (31 March 2014:Rs.10/-)]
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2015

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Note
For the year 

ended
31st March 2015

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax

Depreciation/ amortization on continuing operation

Movements in working capital :

Cash generated from /(used in) operations

Cash flows from investing activities

Decrease / (increase) in Margin Money Deposit

Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities (B)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

      39,071,634

        67,928,181

          (371,097)

              (12,439)

          427,559

          -

        75,454,237

    182,498,075

      (10,460,360)

         (4,935,117)

        (49,586,162)

      54,668,401

           473,440

      (6,356,866)

        6,633,437

    172,934,848

      (6,804,188)

    166,130,660

      (13,868,546)

           369,001

           371,097

                12,439

                   4,070,743

    (9,045,266)

                   37,813,399

      (117,848,681)

      (1,481,670)

         7,000,000

For the year 
ended

31st March 2014

Interest Income

Dividend income 

Loss/ (profit) on sale of fixed assets

Sundry creditors Written Back

Finance costs

Operating profit before working capital changes

Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables

Increase/ (decrease) in other current liabilities

Decrease/ (increase) in trade receivables

Decrease / (increase) in inventories

Decrease / (increase) long term loans and advances

Decrease / (increase) short term loans and advances

Increase / (decrease) in short-term provisions

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)

Net cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities (A)

Purchase of fixed assets, including CWIP and capital advances

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Interest received

Dividends received

97,846,775

      

        

(460,511)

          

(5,376)

             

(260,955)

           

(146,573)

                   

65,819,013

        

242,464,610

    (27,249,946)

       
7,090,445

        26,332,345
       (10,095,694)
        

242,975           

(13,948,944)        

10,130,806
          

234,966,596
    

(26,275,626)
        

208,690,970

    

(31,599,401)

       

676,825

           

460,511

           

5,376

              

          

(30,456,689)

       

        

(83,520,123)

     

(22,950,460)

        

4,000,000

          

79,672,237

-

-

Repayment of long-term borrowings

Proceeds from short-term borrowings

Proceeds from Long term borrowings(Loan from related Party)
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Components of cash and cash equivalents

(Amount in Rupees)

Interest paid (65,819,013)

       

Dividends paid on equity shares (7,920,216)

        

Tax on equity dividend paid (1,346,041)

        
Net cash flow from/ (used in) in financing activities (C) (177,555,853)

   

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + 

B + C) 678,429          

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 916,410          

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  1,594,839
          

Cash on hand   128,892

              

Cheques/ drafts on hand -

              

With banks- on current account   731,799

           

- unpaid dividend accounts   734,148

           

Total cash and cash equivalents 18 1,594,839

      (75,454,237)

        (6,930,189)

        (1,124,250)

   (158,025,628)

           (940,233)

           1,856,643

        916,410

           72,677

                   62,530

           137,862

           643,341

        916,410

          

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes from 1 to 37 are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

S.K.Welling

Chairman

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Aditya M. Gokarn

  Managing Director

Place: Bengaluru
Date : 22nd May 2015

G. Srinivas

Partner

Membership no.: 086761

For Brahmayya & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm registration number: 000515S
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

Triton Valves Limited ('the Company) was incorporated on 10th September 1975 as a Limited Company with 

its Registered office at Bangalore.  The Company is engaged in the business of Manufacturing of valves and 

cores for the automobile tubes and supplies to tyre and tube manufacturers. The Company had a technical 

collaboration with M/s Pingeot Bardin S.A. of France for the first five years. The manufacturing facility was 

set up in the Belavadi Industrial Estate at Mysore. The Company is a market leader for its products since

Year 1992.

1. Company overview

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the generally 

accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The Company has prepared these financial 

statements to comply in all material respects with the accounting standards notified under section 

133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 

2014. The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical 

cost convention. 

Statement of significant accounting policies2.

a. Basis of Preparation

2.1

The preparation of financial statements requires the management of the Company to make 

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures 

relating to the contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and reported 

amounts of income and expense during the year. Examples of such estimates include provisions for 

doubtful receivables, employee benefits, provision for income taxes, the useful lives of depreciable 

fixed assets and provisions for impairment etc. Future results could differ due to changes in these 

estimates and the difference between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the 

period in which the results are known/materialize.

b. Use of Estimates

(i)

c. Tangible Fixed Assets and Depreciation 

Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost net of Cenvat credit. Additions to Tangible Fixed Assets 

in the Gross Block are stated at cost of acquisition and all costs relating to the acquisition and 

installation up to the date the asset is ready to put to use are capitalized. Borrowing costs 

relating to acquisition of fixed assets which take substantial period of time to get ready for its 

intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready 

to be put to use.

(ii) Till the year ended 31 March 2014, depreciation was calculated on straight line method at the 

rates specified in the Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956. From the current year, 

Schedule XIV has been replaced by Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The applicability of 

Schedule II has resulted in the following changes related to depreciation of fixed assets.

(iii) Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013 prescribes useful lives for fixed assets which, in many 

cases, are different from lives prescribed under Schedule XIV. However, Schedule II allows 

companies to use lower/higher useful lives and residual values if such useful lives and residual 

values can be technically supported and justification for difference is disclosed in the financial 

statements.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with 

those of previous year. 
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(iv) Depreciation on the tangible fixed assets is provided on straight line method at the rates based 

on the estimated useful lives of the asset.

Considering the applicability of Schedule II, the management has re-estimated useful lives and 

residual values of all its fixed assets. Useful lives of the assets are determined by the 

management based on the historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of 

future events, which may impact their life, such as change in technology and technical 

assessment of the assets.  

(v) Further, in view of option provided under the notification issued by MCA dated August 29, 2014, 

the Company has opted to adjust, the carrying amount of certain fixed assets amounting to 

Rs. 24,027,124/- as on April 1, 2014 whose remaining useful life was 'Nil' as on that date, 

against the opening balance of retained earnings/general reserve in the financial statements.

(vi) Pursuant to the enactment of the Companies Act 2013, the Company has effective April 01, 2014, 

reviewed and revised the estimated useful life of fixed assets, generally in accordance with the 

provision of Schedule II of the Act or as assessed by the management, except for assets 

individually costing less than Rs. 5,000, which are fully Depreciated in the year of acquisition.

Cost relating to software licenses, which are acquired, are capitalized and amortized on a straight 

- line basis over their useful life not exceeding five years.

d. Intangible Fixed Assets and Amortization

At each Balance sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may 

be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount. If the 

carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognized in 

the Profit & Loss account to the extent the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount. After 

impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining 

useful life. A previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes 

in circumstances.  However the carrying value after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying 

value that would have prevailed by charging usual depreciation if there was no impairment.

e. Impairment of assets

Investments in equity shares are held as long term and are stated at cost. Provision is made when 

permanent diminution in value has arisen in the opinion of the Management.  Current Investments 

are stated at the lower of cost and fair value.

f. Investments

g. Inventories: 

(i) Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.

(ii) Cost is determined following the weighted average method.

(iii) Unsold scrap at the end of the year is taken at an estimated realisable value.

h. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand 

and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015
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Sales are recognised on dispatch of goods to customers.  Sales are inclusive of excise duty net of 

discount and sales tax. Income accruing in the current year and ascertainable/realisable with 

reasonable certainty on the date of financial statements is taken into account.

i. Revenue / Expenditure recognition

(i) Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, at the exchange rates 

prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Expenses accruing in the accounting year and ascertainable with reasonable accuracy on the date of 

financial statement are provided in the accounts.

j. Foreign Currency Transactions

(ii) Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year end and not covered by forward 

exchange contracts are translated at year end exchange rates and those covered by forward 

exchange contracts are determined by their respective contracts.

(iii) Premium for forward contracts is recognised as income or expenditure over the life of the 

contract.

(iv) Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation 

is recongnised in the Profit and Loss Account.

k. Research and Development

Revenue expenses relating to Research and Development are included under respective heads of 

expenditure. Capital expenditure on Research and Development is treated in the same manner as 

expenditure on other fixed assets.

(i) The Company's contributions to recognized funds such as Provident Fund, Employees State 

Insurance, Superannuation, etc. are charged to statement of Profit and Loss.

l. Retirement Benefits

(ii) Gratuity liability is covered by a policy with Life Insurance Corporation of India. Annual 

contribution to the fund is charged to statement of Profit and Loss and the Liability has been 

provided as per actuarial Valuation by Mr. N. Srinivasan (Membership No. 144) Fellow Member 

of the Institute of the Actuaries of India.

(iii) Leave encashment is covered by a policy with Life Insurance Corporation of India. Annual 

contribution to the fund is charged to statement of Profit and Loss and the Liability has been 

provided as per actuarial Valuation by Mr. N. Srinivasan (Membership No. 144) Fellow Member 

of the Institute of the Actuaries of India.

m. Accounting for Taxes on Income

Current tax is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax is recognized on timing differences; being the difference between taxable incomes 

and accounting income that originate in one year and is capable of reversal in one or more 

subsequent years.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are computed on the timing differences 

applying the enacted tax rate. Deferred tax assets arising on account of unabsorbed depreciation 

or carry forward of tax losses are recognized only to the extent that there is virtual certainty 

supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future tax income will be available against 

which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015
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o. Leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the 

leased term are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an 

expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Where the Company is lessee:

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership 

of the asset are classified as operating leases. Assets given under operating leases are included in 

fixed assets. Lease income on an operating lease is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an

expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs,

etc. are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Where the Company is lessor:

p. Provisions

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of a past event and 

it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of 

which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to their present values and are

determined based on the Management's estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at 

the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the 

Management's current estimates.

q. Segment Report

The Company has only one reportable business segment, which is automobile tyre and tube valves, 

cores and accessories and operates in a single business segment. Accordingly, the amounts appearing 

in the financial statements relate to the company's single business segment.

r. Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable 

to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the 

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period 

attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during 

the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

s. Measurement of EBIDTA:

As permitted by the Guidance Note of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has 

elected to present Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortization (EBIDTA) as a 

separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The company measures EBIDTA on 

the basis of profit / (loss) from continuing operations. In its measurement, the Company does not 

include depreciation and amortization expense, finance costs and tax expense.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

n. Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are attributable to acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 

are capitalised as a part of cost of such asset. All other borrowing costs are recognized as an 

expense in the year in which they are incurred.  
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

        

                    

       

(Amount in Rupees)

As at 

31st  March 2015

(a)  Authorized Shares (Nos.)

5,000,000 (March 31, 2014: 5,000,000) Equity Shares of 
Rs. 10 each

        

(b)  Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares (Nos.)

990,027 (March 31, 2014: 990,027) Equity Shares of 
Rs.10 each Fully Paid up           

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up Share Capital

As at 

31st March 2014

              50,000,000

               9,900,270

              9,900,270        

               9,900,270

              9,900,270

              50,000,000

(c)  Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

31st  March 2015 31st March 2014

Nos. Amount Nos. Amount

Equity Shares

At the beginning of the period
Outstanding at the end of the period

 990,027 
 990,027 

 9,900,270
 9,900,270

 990,027 
 990,027 

 9,900,270
 9,900,270

(d)  Terms/ rights attached to Equity Shares

i. 

ii.  

(e)  Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

31st  March 2015 31st March 2014

Nos. % Holding Nos. % Holding

Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid

Anuradha Maruti Gokarn
Mrs.Nirmala Murthy
K Raghunath Shenoy

 280,041 
 112,506 
  54,000 

28.29%
11.36%
5.45%

 280,041 
 112,506 
  54,000 

28.29%
11.36%
5.45%

(f) 

On 28th July, 2010

Nos. Amount Received

Preferential allotment
Bonus Shares allotted (at the ratio of 2 :1)

10,000
 660,018 

 670,018 

  15,040,000
-

  15,040,000 

SHARE CAPITAL3.  

The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each 

holder of Equity Share is entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares would be entitled to receive 

remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will 

be in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by the Shareholders.

Details of Bonus Shares and preferential allotments made for the period of 5 years immediately 

before the date of Balance Sheet
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

(Amount in Rupees)

As at 

31st  March 2015

As at 

31st March 2014

Equity Share premium account 14,940,000

14,940,000

GENERAL RESERVE

Balance as per the last financial statements 419,961,144

Add: Transfer from the Statement of Profit & Loss

Less: Change in Deprecation Method Due to Companies 

Act 2013 24,027,124

Closing Balance 425,934,020

Surplus/ (Deficit) in the statement of profit and loss

Balance as per last financial statements 35,183,684

Add: Profit for the year 74,071,536

109,255,220
Less: Appropriations

Proposed Dividend 11,880,324Proposed            

Tax on dividend 2,547,082

General Reserve 30,000,000

Total appropriation 44,427,406

Net Surplus / (Deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss 64,827,814

505,701,834

           14,940,000        

         14,940,000      

         389,961,144      

           30,000,000        

             -                      

       419,961,144    

           45,317,364        

           29,071,433        

       74,388,797      

7,920,216          

             1,284,897          

           30,000,000        

         39,205,113      

           35,183,684        

       470,084,828    

 

-

        -

        -

-                   -

        37,270,557

         21,233,333

     58,503,890

        58,503,890

                      (58,503,890)

LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

From banks

Indian Rupee loans 

Foreign currency loans

From Others

Loan from Directors

The above amount includes

Secured borrowings

Unsecured borrowings

Amount disclosed under the head 
“other current liabilities”  (note 11)

Net amount

9,570,428

36,000,000

45,570,428

9,570,428

36,000,000

45,570,428

       46,840,914

                 21,233,337

     32,000,000

    100,074,251

       68,074,251

     32,000,000

    100,074,251     -

       47,120,194
           36,399,996
    

                   -                 

     83,520,190   

       83,520,190    

                   -                 

      (83,520,190)     

                  -               

Non-current

As at 

2015

31st  March 

As at 

31st March 

2014

Current maturities

As at 

2015

31st  March 

As at 

2014

31st  March 

RESERVES AND SURPLUS4.

30,000,000

5. 

Total Reserves and Surplus
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i. 

"Term Loan from HDFC Bank carrying interest rate @ 12% p.a. and repayable in 66 equated monthly 
instalments beginning from September 29, 2011.”

Term Loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank carrying interest rate @ PLR minus 2.65 p.a. and repayable in 50 
equated monthly instalments beginning from June, 2013.

ii. 

ECB Term Loan from Standard Chartered Bank carrying interest rate @ 9.75% p.a. and repayable in 48 
equated monthly instalments beginning from November, 2011.

iii. 

(a) by way of First pari passu charge, on hypothecation of all the plant and machinery at the Company's 
existing plant at Belavadi Industrial Area and Hebbal Industrial Estate, Mysore, Company's Registered 
Office and Company Flat at Bangalore

(b) by way of First pari passu charge, on Equitable mortgage of Land and Building at Belavadi Industrial 
Area and Hebbal Industria Area, Mysore, Company's Registered Office and Company Flat at Bangalore

(c) by way of Second Paripassu charge, on hypothecation of Company's entire current assets including 
stocks of raw material, semi finished goods and finished goods, consumable stores and spares and 
such other movables, book debts, bills whether documentary or clean, outstanding monies, 
receivables, both present and future, and

(d) further secured by personal guarantee of the Managing Director.

iv. 

As at 

31st  March 2015

As at 

31st  March 2014

(Amount in Rupees)

Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax 
depreciation and depreciation/ amortization charged 
for the financial reporting

Gross deferred tax liability

Deferred tax Asset

Employee Benefits

Gross deferred tax asset

Net deferred tax liability

38,135,563

38,135,563

5,546,968

5,546,968

32,588,594

48,023,809

48,023,809

5,068,998

5,068,998

42,954,811

Dealer Deposits(Interest Free)

Others

45,000

150,000

45,000

150,000

195,000 195,000

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET)6. 

7. OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Indian Rupee Term Loans from Banks (secured) consist of ;

Foreign currency Term Loans from Banks (secured) consist of;

Indian Rupee Term Loan and Foreign Currency Term Loans are secured:

Loan from Directors carryies an Interest @ 11.40% and the Loan is repayable after 31st March, 2016



Cash credit from banks carry interest rate @ 11.50% - 13.85 % p.a. and are repayable on Demand

(i) 

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d) 

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

As at 
31st  March 

2015

(i) Cash credit from banks

The above amount includes

 376,494,197

 376,494,197 

 376,494,197

-

As at 
31st  March 

2014

 399,444,657

 399,444,657

 399,444,657

-

Secured borrowings

Unsecured borrowings

9. 

Cash credit from banks are secured:

60

As at 
31st  March 

2015

As at 
31st  March 

2014

(Amount in Rupees)

8.

Provision for Employee benefits

-

-

-

-

-

-

As at 
31st  March 

2015

As at 
31st  March 

2014

 12,370,133 

 1,063,336 

 11,554,403 

    24,987,872 

 11,827,785 

 1,789,982 

 4,830,613 

 18,448,380 

Non-current Current

Provision for gratuity

Provision for leave benefits

Provision for other employee benefits

Other Provision

Provision for equity dividend

Provision for tax on proposed equity dividend

Provision for tax (net off Advance Tax and 

Mat Credit)

 11,880,324 

 2,485,938 

 4,586,760 

 18,953,022 

 43,940,894 

 7920,216 

 1,284,897 

 995,446 

 10,200,559 

 28,648,939 

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

PROVISIONS

by way of first Paripassu charge, on hypothecation of Company's entire current assets including 
stocks of raw material, semi finished goods and finished goods, consumable stores and spares and
such other movables, book debts, bills whether documentary or clean, outstanding monies, 
receivables, both present and future,

by way of Second paripassu charge, on hypothecation of all the plant and machinery at the 
company's existing plant at Belavadi Industrial Area, Hebbal Industrial Area, Mysore and Company's 
registered Office and Company Flat at Bangalore,

by way of Second paripassu charge, on Equitable mortgage of Land and Building at Belavadi Industrial 
Area and Hebbal Indusatrial Area, Mysore, Company's registered Office and Company Flat at Bangalore.

further secured by personal guarantee of the Managing Director.
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(Amount in Rupees)

10. 

As at 
31st  March 

2015

As at 
31st  March 

2014

-

 103,523,127 

 103,523,127 

-

 130,919,646 

 130,919,646 

Trade payable

- dues to enterprises covered under MSMED Act, 2006 (refer Note No.28)

- Others

11. 

 58,503,890

 728,440

 796,059

-

 9,183,992

 18,845,519 

 88,057,900

 83,520,190

 637,507

 2,230,611

 1,127,903

 7,043,030

 11,424,514

 105,983,755

Current  maturities  of  long-term  borrowings (note 5)

Unpaid dividend

Capital Creditors

Discount Payable

Statutory dues

Others

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

TRADE PAYABLES

OTHER LIABILITIES



62

A
s 

a
t 

M
a
rc

h
 3

1
, 

2
0
1
4

1
3
. 

W
o
rk

-i
n
-p

ro
g
re

ss

A
d
d
it

io
n
s

D
e
le

ti
o
n
s

C
a
p
it

a
li
sa

ti
o
n

A
s 

a
t 

M
a
rc

h
 3

1
, 

2
0
1
5

8
,8

0
8
,8

3
0

1
6
,0

1
1
,4

1
3

-
1
4
,2

4
2
,6

5
1

1
0
,5

7
7
,5

9
3

N
o
te

s 
to

 t
h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
st

a
te

m
e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
e
d
 3

1
st

 M
a
rc

h
, 

2
0
1
5

1
2

Ta
n
gi

b
le

 a
ss

e
ts

(A
m

o
u
n
t 

In
 R

u
p
e
e
s)

B
u
il
d
in

gs
P
la

n
t 

an
d

M
ac

h
in

e
ry

C
o
m

p
u
te

r 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
ts

O
ff

ic
e
 

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
ts

V
e
h
ic

le
s

Fu
rn

it
u
re

&
 F

ix
tu

re
s

T
O

TA
L

In
ta

n
gi

b
le

 

A
ss

e
st

s
To

ta
l

C
o
st

 o
r 

va
lu

at
io

n

 

A
t 

A
p
ri

l 
1
, 

2
0
1
3

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
9
3
,4

0
7
,7

7
9

  
 

6
7
6
,9

1
7
,0

9
8
  
 

4
,2

8
8
,9

7
2

  
 

4
,0

9
8
,3

8
5

  
 

1
7
,5

4
2
,9

4
2

  
 

1
,0

2
3
,5

4
3
,1

7
2

  
 

5
5
5
,1

8
0

  
  
 

5
5
5
,1

8
0

  
  

  

A
d
d
it

io
ns

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

4,
88

0,
04

2
  

  
  

  
 

7,
58

4,
40

4
  

  
  

  
18

4,
04

0
  

  
  

61
9,

19
1

  
  

  
15

,0
37

  
  

  
  

  
 

13
,6

49
,2

01
  

  
  

  
 

1,
24

1,
79

9
  

  
1,

24
1,

79
9

  
  

  

D
is

p
os

al
s

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

2,
07

6,
86

2 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
7,

50
0

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
2,

08
4,

36
2

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

A
S 

- 
11

 a
d
ju

st
m

en
ts

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Bo
rr

ow
in

g 
co

st
 a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
5
,0

3
7
,3

3
0

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
9
8
,2

8
7
,8

2
1

  
 

6
8
2
,4

2
4
,6

4
0
  
 

4
,4

6
5
,5

1
2

  
 

4
,7

1
7
,5

7
6

  
 

1
7
,5

5
7
,9

7
9

  
 

1
,0

3
5
,1

0
8
,0

1
1

  
 

1
,7

9
6
,9

7
9

  
 

1
,7

9
6
,9

7
9

  
  

A
d
d
it

io
ns

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

8,
74

5,
33

0
  

  
  

  
 

7,
08

8,
45

9
  

  
  

  
36

9,
72

2
  

  
  

1,
16

0,
98

4
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

17
,8

95
,5

93
  

  
  

  
 

60
,0

00
  

  
  

  
 

60
,0

00

  
  

  
  

  
 

D
is

p
os

al
s

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

2,
38

2,
87

8 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
50

9,
07

8  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

2,
89

1,
95

6
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Bo
rr

ow
in

g 
co

st
 a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
5
,0

3
7
,3

3
0

  
  

  
  

  
 

3
0
7
,0

3
3
,1

5
1

  
 

6
8
7
,1

3
0
,2

2
1
  
 

4
,8

3
5
,2

3
4

  
 

5
,3

6
9
,4

8
3

  
 

1
7
,5

5
7
,9

7
9

  
 

1
,0

5
0
,1

1
1
,6

4
8

  
 

1
,8

5
6
,9

7
9

  
 

1
,8

5
6
,9

7
9

  
  

D
e
p
re

ci
at

io
n

 

A
t 

A
p
ri

l1
, 

2
0
1
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

3
4
,1

7
6
,9

8
7

  
  
 

2
7
2
,6

3
7
,0

1
6
  

  
 

1
,2

1
2
,7

6
1

  
 

2
,2

9
5
,7

7
7

  
 

6
,8

6
9
,9

1
1

  
  
 

3
2
7
,0

6
1
,0

1
4

  
  
 

2
2
2
,0

7
2

  
  
 

2
2
2
,0

7
2

  
  

  

C
ha

rg
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

9,
64

7,
08

3
  

  
  

  
 

55
,3

28
,0

53
  

  
  

  
23

9,
41

5
  

  
  

38
9,

30
3

  
  

  
1,

06
2,

61
9

  
  

  
 

6
7
,6

4
7
,8

0
8

  
  

  
 

28
0,

37
2

  
  

  
28

0,
37

2

  
  

  
  

A
d
ju

st
m

en
ts

*
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

D
is

p
os

al
s

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

1,
28

0,
30

2 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
7,

50
0

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
 

1
,2

8
7
,8

0
2

  
  

  
  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

A
t 

M
ar

ch
 3

1
, 

2
0
1
4  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

4
3
,8

2
4
,0

7
0

  
  
 

3
2
6
,6

8
4
,7

6
7
  
 

1
,4

4
4
,6

7
6

  
 

2
,6

8
5
,0

8
0

  
 

7
,9

3
2
,5

3
0

  
  
 

3
9
3
,4

2
1
,0

2
0

  
  
 

5
0
2
,4

4
4

  
  
 

5
0
2
,4

4
4

  
  

  

13
,9

73
,0

55
  

  
  
 

61
,3

39
,4

80
  

  
  

  
68

4,
39

0
  

  
  

39
1,

94
7

  
  

  
2,

05
2,

35
9

  
  

  
 

7
9
,3

5
3
,3

3
1

  
  

  
 

31
8,

90
7

  
  

  
31

8,
90

7

  
  

  
  

4,
07

8,
40

4
  

  
  

  
 

17
,8

97
,8

77
  

  
  

  
2,

06
2,

71
5

  
  

33
8,

71
0

  
  

  
12

7,
95

1
2
4
,0

2
7
,1

2
4

  
  

  
 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1,
96

7,
00

8
  

  
  

  
 

50
9,

07
8

  
  

  

2
,4

7
6
,0

8
6

  
  

  
  
 

-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

A
t 

M
ar

ch
 3

1
, 

2
0
1
5

-
6
1
,8

7
5
,5

2
9

  
  
 

4
0
3
,9

5
5
,1

1
6
  
 

4
,1

9
1
,7

8
1

  
 

2
,2

2
9
,2

4
0

  
 

9
,8

5
6
,9

3
8

  
  
 

4
9
4
,3

2
5
,3

9
0

  
  
 

8
2
1
,3

5
1

  
  
 

8
2
1
,3

5
1

  
  

  

N
e
t 

B
lo

ck

1
5
,0

3
7
,3

3
0

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
5
9
,2

3
0
,7

9
1

  
 

4
0
4
,2

8
0
,0

8
2
  

  
 

3
,0

7
6
,2

1
1

  
 

1
,8

0
2
,6

0
8

  
 

1
0
,6

7
3
,0

3
0

  
 

6
9
6
,4

8
2
,1

5
7

  
  
 

3
3
3
,1

0
8

  
  
 

3
3
3
,1

0
8

  
  

  

1
5
,0

3
7
,3

3
0

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
4
5
,1

5
7
,6

2
2

  
 

2
8
3
,1

7
5
,1

0
5

  
 

1
2
,2

5
0
,6

6
6

  
  

  
  
 

36
6,

48
7

  
  

  
  
 

- -

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
-

  
 

1
2
,6

1
7
,1

5
3

  
  

  
  
 

53
1,

09
8

- 
  

  
  

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
-

  
 

1
3
,1

4
8
,2

5
1

  
 

9
,8

6
8
,5

6
2

  
  

  
 

98
1,

33
5

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
-

  
  

  
  
 

-

  
 

1
0
,8

4
9
,8

9
7

  
  

  
 

91
2,

10
0

  
  

  
 

45
4,

78
9

  
 

1
2
,2

1
6
,7

8
6

  
 

2
,3

8
2
,1

0
4

  
 

9
3
1
,4

6
5

  
  

  
 

6
4
3
,4

5
3

  
  
 

3
,1

4
0
,2

4
3

  
 

7
,7

0
1
,0

4
1

  
  
 

5
5
5
,7

8
6
,2

5
9

  
  
 

1
,0

3
5
,6

2
8

  
 

1
,0

3
5
,6

2
8

  
  

1
5
,0

3
7
,3

3
0

- - -

A
t 

M
ar

ch
 3

1
, 

2
0
1
4

- - -

A
t 

M
ar

ch
 3

1
, 

2
0
1
5

- - - -

C
ha

rg
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

A
d
ju

st
m

en
ts

*

D
is

p
os

al
s

A
t 

M
ar

ch
 3

1
, 

2
0
1
4

A
t 

M
ar

ch
 3

1
, 

2
0
1
5

  
  

-

L
an

d



63
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Note: Further, in view of option provided under the notification issued by MCA dated August 29, 2014, the 

Company has opted to adjust, the carrying amount of certain fixed assets amounting to Rs. 24,027,124/- as on 

April 1, 2014 whose remaining useful life was ‘Nil’ as on that date, against the opening balance of retained 

earnings in the financial statements. The Depreciation on the tangible fixed assets is provided on straight line 

method at the rates specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 based on the useful life of the assets. 

Useful lives of the assets are determined by the management at the time of applicability of Schedule II of the 

Companies Act, 2013. The lives are based on the historical experience with similar assets as well as 

anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as change in technology

14. 

Name of The Company

Number of 

Shares  as at 

31 March 

2015

Number of 

31 March 

2014

Face Value 

As at 

31st  March 

2015

As at 

31st March 

2014

Investment in Equity 
Instruments (traded - quoted)

Investment in Equity 
nstruments (traded - unquoted)

Dunlop India Ltd  

Investment in Equity 
instruments (non-trade-quoted)

FLorence Investech Limited

Shares  as at 

   (Aggregate Market value of quoted equity shares is Rs.2,992,923.30/- (Previous year Rs.1,822,475/-)

(Amount in Rupees)N0N-TRADE INVESTMENTS (Valued at Cost unless stated otherwise)

Apollo Tyres Ltd

T.V.S. Srichakra Tyre Ltd 

MRF Ltd

J.K.Tyre & Industries Ltd

Ceat Limited

Goodyear India Ltd

Govind Rubber Ltd

Modi Rubber Ltd

ICICI Bank Ltd

Dewan Tyres Ltd.

Bombay  Tyres International Ltd

Bengal & Assam Company Ltd.

J.K.Agri Genetics Limited

Summit Securities Limited

Dhampur Sugar Mills limited

100

2

500

100

50

300

37

200

200

50

2040

100

50

4

3

3

1

100

0

500

100

50

60

37

200

200

50

408

100

50

4

5

5

1

6,500

           -

73,012

2,762

1,975

12,850

4,504

3,983

9,850

1,750

2,800

22,200

1,355

1,490

106

332

120

435

        

133

73,012

2,762

1,975

12,850

4,504

3,983

9,850

1,750

2,800

22,200

1,355
        

1,490        

6,500

        106
        199
        120
        435

Rs 10/-each .

  Rs.10/-each

Rs.1/-each

Rs.10/-each

Rs.10/-each

Rs.2/-each

Rs.10/-each

Rs.10/-each

Rs.10/-each

Rs.10/-each

Rs.2/-each

Rs.10/- each
 

Rs.10/- each 

 Rs 10/-each
 Rs 10/-each
 Rs 10/-each
 Rs 10/-each



(Amount in Rupees)

As at 

31st  March 

2015

As at 

31st March 

2014

As at 

31st  March 

2015

                 -

                 -

                 -

     145,750

   145,750

       5,401,624

     5,401,624

                 6,870,384

        723,107

       7,593,491

13,140,865

As at 

31st March 

2014

              -

             -

   18,492,997

    3,888,282    

  3,888,282  

                
    4,351,842    
    4,494,254    
    2,370,733    
    703,013      

  6,508,141    
    65,014         

22,381,279

CurrentNon-current

 

16. 

As at 

31st  March 

2015

As at 

31st March 

2014

Outstanding for a period exceeding 
six months from the date they are 
due for payment

Total (A+B)
 

Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Doubtful 

-
-

-

Provision for doubtful trade receivables -

(A) -

Other Receivables

Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Doubtful

-
-
-

-

Provision for doubtful trade receivables -

(B) -

-

As at 

31st  March 

2015

      -

 48,913,159 
-

48,913,159

-

 48,913,159 

-

 276,117,010 
-

276,117,010

-

276,117,010

 325,030,169 

As at 

31st March 

2014

-
-

-

-

-

-
-
-

-

-

-

-

              -

               

 16,891,000 
-

16,891,000

-

 16,891,000 

-

 334,471,514 
-

334,471,514

-

334,471,514

 351,362,514 
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-

12,020,796

5,401,624

 480,132

12,020,796

5,401,624

480,132

17,902,552
   

-

-

-

-

CurrentNon-current

TRADE RECEIVABLES 

      -

     -

    5,203,282

   5,203,282

    3,878,035

              6,626,287

              2,843,891

      1,845,578

              12,738,688

              2,199,016

35,334,777

   30,131,495

Capital Advances

Security Deposit

Other Loans and Advances

MAT credit entitlement

Advances to Suppliers

Prepaid expenses

Government Authorities

Others

Total (A+B+C)
 

Balances with Statutory / 

LOANS AND ADVANCES15. 

Unsecured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good

Loans to employees

(A)

(B)

(C ) 

- - - -



(Amount in Rupees)

17.

As at 
31st  March 

2015

As at 
31st  March 

2014

Raw materials and components

Work-in-progress

Finished goods

Packing Materials

Stores and spares

Loose Tools

 95,140,209

66,967,749

53,036,690

 1,564,542 

 31,266,514 

 10,661,711 

 258,637,415

 98,445,626

 7,277,969

 34,213,118

 1,299,211

 30,704,117 

 11,201,681 

 248,541,721

18. 

Balances with Banks:

As at 
31st  March 

2015

As at 
31st  March 

2014

Current

On current accounts

Cheques/ Drafts on Hand

Cash on hand

Other Bank balances

On Unpaid Dividend Account

Total

 731,799 

-

 128,892 

 860,691 

 734,148

 734,148

 1,594,839 

 137,862 

 62,530

 72,677

 273,069 

 643,341

 643,341

 916,410 
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19. 

For the year ended
31st March 2015

For the year ended
31st March 2014

Sale of products

Other operating Income

Less :Excise Duty Paid

Revenue from operations 

 1,733,689,358

 146,689,943

 1,880,379,301 

 185,360,470

 1,695,018,831

 1,622,879,275

 161,595,585

 1,784,474,860

 178,506,563

 1,605,968,297

INVENTORIES 
(valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
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(Amount in Rupees)

20. 

For the year ended
31st March 2015

For the year ended
31st March 2014

Others

Dividend income on Long-term investments

Gain on account of foreign exchange fluctuations (net)

Creditors  written back

Profit on sale of Fixed Assets

Rent Received

Other  non-operating  income

 460,511

 5,376 

 2,085,717

 146,573 

 260,955 

 277,200 

 54,577 

 3,290,909

 371,097

 12,439

-

-

-

-

 114,276 

 775,012 

21. 

Brass:

Opening Stock

Add: Purchases during the year

Closing Stock

(A)

Rubber:

Opening Stock

Add: Purchases during the year

Closing Stock

(B)

Others:

Opening Stock

Add: Purchases during the year

Closing Stock

 79,416,274

 871,069,325 

 70,346,308 

 880,139,292

 11,500,825 

 127,947,457 

 15,636,087 

 123,812,195

 7,528,527 

 54,272,251 

 9,157,814 

 52,642,964 

 1,056,594,450

 86,683,456

 828,727,408 

 79,416,274

 835,994,590

 18,675,952 

 123,459,462 

 11,500,824 

 130,634,590

 9,860,789 

 48,975,924 

 7,528,527

 51,308,186 

 1,017,937,365

(C ) 
Total Raw material Consumed(A+B+C)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

Inventories at the end of the year

Work-in-progress

Finished goods

 66,967,749 

 53,036,690 

 120,004,439

 72,677,969

 34,213,118

 106,891,087

 72,677,969 

 34,213,118 

 106,891,087

 (13,113,352)

 112,554,276 

 32,260,733 

 144,815,009

 37,923,922

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Work-in-progress

Finished goods

OTHER INCOME

DETAIL OF RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED

22. (INCREASE)/ DECREASE IN INVENTORIES
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(Amount in Rupees)

23.

For the year ended
31st March 2015

For the year ended
31st March 2014

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other fund

Gratuity, Leave Encashment and Superannuation expenses

Staff welfare expenses

Directors Remuneration-MD

 161,921,243 

 8,284,211 

 5,692,664 

 12,034,543 

 6,497,522 

 194,430,183

 138,387,049 

 6,528,952 

 12,071,201 

 7,950,365 

 5,738,043 

 170,675,610

24. 

Administrative Expenses 

Electricity and water charges 

Other manufacturing Expenses 

Carriage Inwards 

Rent 

Rates and taxes 

Insurance 

Repairs and Maintenance 

Plant and Machinery 

Buildings 

Others    

Loss in Rate of Foreign Exchange 

Advertising and sales promotion 

Travelling and conveyance 

Communication costs 

Printing and stationery 

Legal and professional fees 

Directors’ sitting fees 

Directors’ Commission 

Payment to Auditor (Refer details below) 

Vehicle Maintenance 

Watch & Ward 

Light & Water 

Packing & Forwarding  

Stores & Spares consumed 

Donation 

Loss on sale of fixed assets (net) (Including CWIP) 

Miscellaneous expenses

 36,822,388   

26,566,612   

4,122,310   

708,282   

680,335   

2,983,516    

441,148   

1,072,861   

1,601,711   

-     

5,234,568   

4,574,360   

1,179,071   

2,935,507   

6,012,971

300,000   

1,054,377   

649,073   

483,889   

3,579,781   

141,177   

34,255,040   

79,899,957   

12,000   

-     

1,749,500   

217,060,434

 31,231,881   

21,143,015   

2,793,580   

634,312   

908,359   

2,126,604       

1,520,388   

938,122   

1,904,299   

14,424,818   

3,956,663   

5,220,343   

1,091,360   

2,023,907   

6,011,299

240,000   

459,366   

504,645   

514,633   

3,072,007   

162,503   

25,819,843   

69,402,507   

25,000   

427,559   

1,195,346   

197,752,359

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

EMPLYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

OTHER EXPENSE
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(Amount in Rupees)

For the year ended
31st March 2015

For the year ended
31st March 2014

 400,000 

 100,000 

 50,000 

 99,073 

 649,073

 280,000 

 30,000 

 136,854 

 57,791 

 504,645 

Payment to Auditors

-Statutory Audit Fee

-Taxation Matters

-VAT Audit Fee

-Reimbursement of expenses

 79,353,331 

 318,907

 79,672,238

 67,647,808

 280,372

 67,928,181

25. 

Depreciation of Tangible Assets

Amortization of Intangible Assets

 61,753,338 

 4,065,675 

 65,819,013

26.

Interest Expenses

Other Borrowing Costs

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

118,648,961

37,045,043

2,327,115

100,000

 70,881,994 

 4,572,243 

 75,454,237

153,100,920

437,250

2,327,115

100,000

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

a) Letters of  Credit  outstanding 

b) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be 
executed on capital accounts and not provided for 

c) In respect of Income-tax Matters

d) Bank Guarantee

28.

29.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

FINANCE COSTS

27.

“Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act): Based on the information 

available with the company, there are no Micro, Small and Medium enterprises, to which the company 

owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 days as at 31st March, 2015. Further, no interest 

during the year has been paid or payable under the terms of the MSMED Act, 2006. "

Confirmation letters of balances to Sundry Debtors & Creditors have been sent by the Company and 

some confirmatory Letters have been received and reconciled.



d) 

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year

Actuarial return of plan assets

Contributions

Benefits Paid

Fair value of plan assets at the end of year

Funded status

         16,380,248

            1,284,272

            1,500,000

           (3,461,073)

          15,740,969

         (11,827,785)

(11,827,785)
               

1,260,241
                 

1,988,867

                 

(1,916,596)

                

17,085,185

               

(12,370,133)

              

(Actual rate of return - Estimated rate of return as ARD falls on 31st March)

Excess of Actual over estimated return on plan assets    NIL
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30.

Gratuity Report under AS-15 (Revised 2005) for year ended 31st Mar 2015

The following tables sets out the funded status of the gratuity plans and the amounts recognized in the  
Company's financial statements as at 31st March, 2015

a) 

Salary Escalation

b) 

Present value of obligation as at beginning of year

Interest Cost

Current Service Cost

Benefits Paid

Actuarial  (gain) / loss on obligation

Present value of obligation as at end of year

c) 

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year

Expected return on plan assets

Contributions

Benefits Paid

Actuarial gain / (loss) on Plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the end of year

Discount Rate

          21,215,068

            1,776,989

            5,063,127

           (3,461,073)

           2,974,643

          27,568,754

          16,380,248

            1,284,272

            1,500,000

           (3,461,073)

                 37,522

          15,740,969

9.12%

8.00%

2013-14

               

                 

                 

                

                 

27,568,754

2,128,836

3,024,756

(1,916,596)

(1,350,432)

29,455,318
               

15,740,969               

1,260,241                 

1,988,867
                 

(1,916,596)                

11,704                      

17,085,185
               

8.00%

8.00%

2014-15

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

Assumption :

Table Showing changes in present value of Obligation:

Table showing changes in the fair value of Plan Assets:

Table showing fair value of Plan Assets :

The actuarial value of Gratuity liability As at 31st March 2015 is Rs.29,455,318/- (31st March 2014, 
Rs. 27,568,754/-) as per the workings under AS15 (Revised) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India



3) 

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year

Expected return on plan assets

Contributions

Benefits Paid

Actuarial gain / (loss) on Plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the end of year

2,648,227

251,929

1,005,110

(3,350)

(52,458)

3,849,458

            2,931,295

              213,310

            499,000

                  (1,028,834)

                33,456

            2,648,227

e) 

Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations 

Actuarial (gain) / loss the year - plan assets

Total (gain) / loss for the year

Actuarial (gain) / loss recognised in the year

f) 

Present value of obligation as at the end of the year

Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year

Funded status

Net asset / (liability) recognised in Balance Sheet

(2,974,643)

                       37,522

            (2,937,121)

            (2,937,121)

          27,568,754

          15,740,969

         (11,827,785)

         (11,827,785)

2013-14

           1,350,432

-

1,350,432

1,350,432

29,455,318

17,085,185

(12,370,133)

(12,370,133)

2014-15
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31.

Group Leave Encashment Scheme Report under AS-15 (Revised 2005) for year ended 31st March, 2015

1) 

Salary Escalation

2) 

Present value of obligation as at beginning of year

Interest Cost

Current Service Cost

Benefits Paid

Actuarial  (gain) / loss on obligation

Present value of obligation as at end of year

Discount Rate

            2,952,573

              222,360

            1,540,326

                  (1,028,834)

           751,784

            4,438,209

9.12%

8.00%

8.00%

4,438,209                 

354,923                   

1,204,657                 

(3,350)                

(1,081,645)                   

4,912,794

8.00%

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

Actuarial Gain / Loss Recognised :

The amount to be recognised in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss:

The actuarial value of Leave Encashment liability As at 31st March 2015 is Rs.1,063,336/-(31st March 
2014,  Rs.1,789,982/-) as per the workings under AS15 (Revised) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India

 Assumption :

Table Showing changes in present value of Obligation:

Table showing changes in the fair value of Plan Assets:
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4) 

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year

Actuarial return of plan assets

Contributions

Benefits Paid

Fair value of plan assets at the end of year

Funded status

5) 

Acturial (gain) / loss on obligations 

Acturial (gain) / loss for the year - plan assets

Total (gain) / loss for the year

Acturial (gain) / loss recognised in the year

Present value of obligation as at the end of the year

Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year

Funded status

Net asset / (liability) recognised in Balance Sheet

2014-15

1,789,982

251,929

1,005,110

(3,350)

3,849,458

1,063,336

(1,081,645)

(52,458)

(1,134,103)

(1,134,103)

1,789,982

3,849,458

1,063,336

(1,063,336)

2013-14

            2,859,012

              213,310

            499,000

                  (1,028,834)

            2,648,227

            1,789,982

           (751,784)

                33456

           (718,328)

           (718,328)

            4,438,209

            2,648,227

           1,789,982

            (1,789,982)

Excess of Actual over estimated return on plan assets    NIL

(Actual rate of return - Estimated rate of return as ARD falls on 31st March)

6) 

32.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

Table showing fair value of Plan Assets :

Acturial Gain / Loss Recognised :

The amount to be recognised in the Balance Sheet 
and statement of Profit and Loss :

Rs.185,291,042/- of Excise duty paid includes Rs.5,892,966/- (Rs.3,194,879) being provision made for 
duty payable on the unsold stock of finished goods.



33. 

Information given in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard 18 on related party 
disclosures issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

Transactions 
for the

year ended
 31 March, 2014

         3,467,748          

                   160,815            

              51,348               

         3,306,107          

         700,000            

           -                     

                   -                     

       31,000,000        

         1,000,000          

           329,087            

         5,738,043
          

         5,738,043          

Firm where Directors are interested

Key Management Personnel

Nature of RelationshipName of the Party

M/s Suvardhan, Bangalore Partnership Firm

(ii)

(iii)

(a) 

Suvardhan, Bangalore

Sales  (Inclusive of taxes)

(d) 

        Receivables   

        Payable

(iv)

Purchase of Goods (Inclusive of taxes)

Rent Received

(b) 

(b) 

Mrs. A. Gokarn 

Mr. Aditya M. Gokarn 

Suvardhan

(I) 

* Does not include contribution to Provident Fund

3,334,428

51,348

3,932,577

4,500,000

500,000

35,000,000

1,000,000

335,228

6,497,522

     6,497,522

-

                   -

Transactions 
for the

year ended
 31 March, 2015

Previous Year34. 

(a) 

(b) 

Earning per Share- basic and diluted

Current Year

Rs.
  74,071,536 

 990,027 

 74.82 

Rs.
 29,071,433 

 990,027 

 29.36 
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

Rs. Rs.

Related Party Transactions:

(i) 

Mrs. Anuradha M.Gokarn & Mr.Aditya M. Gokarn

Transaction with the above related party

Nature of Transactions:

Interest Paid to Directors

Balance as at March 31, 2015

Loan from Directors

Loan Repaid to Directors

(i) 

(ii) 

(ii)

Managerial Remuneration:

Mr. Aditya M. Gokarn *

In Calculating Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share:

Profit after Tax

Number of equity shares
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Previous Year
Value Rs.35.1

Current Year
Value Rs.a) 

i)  Raw Materials

ii)  Stores & Spares

iii) Machinery

Expenditure in Foreign Currency :

i) Travelling 

Total 

 826,899,306 

 5,093,513 

 1,895,687

1,027,389

 834,915,895

 759,595,599 

 5,101,771 

704,226 

 765,401,595 

 -

c) 

Previous Year
Value Rs.

Export of goods.  175,509,952

35.2Earnings in Foreign Exchange on FOB basis:

 188,049,697

Current Year
Value Rs.

36.  Derivative Instruments

a)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

b) 

CIF Value of Imports :

Value of Imported and Indigenous Materials Consumed :

 5,466,309 

 74,433,648 

 79,899,957

ii) 

Imported

Indigenous

7

93

100

 5,196,900 

 64,205,607 

 69,402,507

7

93

100

Previous YearCurrent Year

Raw Materials

 850,172,511 

 206,421,939 

 1,056,594,450

Value Rs. % to total 
consumption

Imported

Indigenous

Value Rs. % to total 
consumption

 80 

 20 

 100 

 780,266,872

 237,670,494

 1,017,937,366

 77

 23 

100Total

Total

   i) 

Stores, Spares & Components :

During the year, the company has entered into formal hedging policy to hedge its exposure in foreign 

currency and interest rate (if any).  However, the outstanding derivative instruments as on March 31, 

2015  is NIL (March 31, 2014 – NIL) 



b) 

Foreign currency exposure that are not hedged by a derivative instruments or otherwise are as follows:

As at March,2014As at March,2015

Assets

 319,885

 48,000 

 128,290 

 1,787 

 1,003,953 

 19,511 

Particulars
Foreign 

Currency
Equivalent 

in Rs.

USD

USD

EURO

CHF

USD

EURO

 19,819,286 

 2,992,655 

 8,874,292 

 117,873 

 63,079,759

 1,413,866 

 148,828 

 24,716 

-

-

 1,314,138

-

 9,070,898 

 1,958,034 

-

-

 104,216,355

-
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Foreign 
Currency

Equivalent 
in Rs.

i) 

ii)

Liabilities

i) 

37.  

S.K.Welling

Chairman

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Aditya M. Gokarn

Managing Director

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 22nd May 2015

G. Srinivas

Partner

Membership no.: 086761

For Brahmayya & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm registration number: 000515S

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015

Unhedged foreign currency exposures:

Trade Receivables

Advance paid

Trade payable

Currency

The previous year’s figures are regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.
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